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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

10th Floor Cosco Tower
Grand Millennium Plaza
183 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

P. O. Box 10008
Willow House
Cricket Square
Grand Cayman
KY1-1001
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
P. O. Box 10008

Willow House

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman

KY1-1001

Cayman Islands

STOCK CODE
1469

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.getnicefg.com.hk

(Information on the website does not form part of this annual report)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

OVERVIEW
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s revenue

amounted to approximately HK$401.6 million, representing a
decrease of 8.7% as compared with approximately HK$440.1
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
slight decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
in brokerage commission with less turnover during the year.
Operating expenses such as commission expenses and settlement

expenses were generally in line with the revenue.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$133.0 million (2018: HK$276.9 million).
The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the decrease
in revenue, increase in finance cost, loss on redemptions of
convertible bonds and recognition of impairment loss on loans
to securities margin clients during the current year. The Group
recorded imputed interest expenses arising from convertible
bonds issued in September 2017 of HK$96.7 million during
the current year (2018: HK$57.7 million). Loss on redemptions
of HK$38.9 million (2018: HK$Nil) were recorded upon
redemptions of convertible bonds of total principal amounts
of HK$262.5 million during the year. The Group recorded
impairment losses on loans to securities margin clients of
HK$20.1 million (2018: HK$Nil) in current year and there were
one-off gains on disposal of two subsidiaries of HK$20 million

recorded in prior year.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK5 cents (2018:

HK11 cents) as a result of decrease in profit during the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Market Review

During the current financial year, the Hong Kong stock market
experienced a roller coaster ride. The market had a bullish
beginning of the year 2018; Hang Seng Index once soared to
a record high of 33,484 points on 29 January 2018 and then
closed at 30,093 points on 31 March 2018. Starting with the
second quarter of 2018, United States demonstrated positive
impact leading the recovery of global economy. China also
recorded stable GDP growth. However, the rally came fast and
left fast, the stock market lost its momentum turning into the
third quarter of 2018.

During the period from the third quarter of 2018 to the first
quarter of 2019, tensions around unfair trade practices and
intellectual property theft were dominating market highlights.
Substantial escalation of trade-restrictive measures between
the United States and China was leading to economic losses
for these two economies and increasing trade costs and market
uncertainties globally. The US-China trade war further
undermined stock prices in China and Hong Kong market and
also weighed on the Chinese currency. The renminbi recorded
unusual depreciations in response to trade-related news.
Meanwhile, a renewed US dollar rally drew investors from the
Southeast Asia market including Hong Kong. Depreciation of
the renminbi further pushed a downside momentum to the
Hong Kong stock market. On the other hand, concerns over
decelerating economic activity in China added to investors’
pessimism. As a result of the Chinese government’s efforts to
curb shadow banking activities, credit to the real economy had
begun to decline and equity markets to slip during the current
period. Indicators of economic activity of China also generally
disappointed the market. Reflecting to the global economic
and political issues, the monthly turnover of Hong Kong stock

market continued a decline trend during the current year.

In light of the global economic headwinds, the Hang Seng Index
closed at 29,051 point at the end of March 2019 compared
with 30,093 point at the end of March 2018. The average daily
turnover on the Main Board and GEM during the year ended 31
March 2019 was approximately HK$96.4 billion, a decrease of
9.2% as compared with approximately HK$106.2 billion for the

prior financial year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$17.7 million (2018:
HK$71.6 million). The operating result of the broking business
decreased by 75.3% as a result of the decrease in our broking
turnover and number of sizeable corporate finance transactions
during current year and also the one-off gains on disposal of
two subsidiaries engaged in broking business of HK$20 million
recorded in prior year. The decrease in broking turnover was
affected by the volatile local stock market and negative global
investment atmosphere. Revenue from broking for the year
decreased by 43% to approximately HK$59.2 million (2018:
HK$103.9 million) as compared with last financial year, of
which approximately HK$12.7 million (2018: HK$30.3 million)
was contributed by the underwriting, placing and proof of funds
business. The decrease in these fee incomes was due to the
decrease in number of deals as a result of the less active capital

market during the current year.

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s major
revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total interest
income from securities margin financing went up by 1.6% to
approximately HK$340.3 million (2018: HK$334.8 million)
with the increase in average level of securities margin lending
during the year. Total outstanding loan of securities margin
financing as at 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$3,732.6 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$4,091.5
million). Impairment loss on margin clients receivable of
HKS$20.1 million was charged during the current year (2018:
HKS$Nil). The Group will continue to maintain a balance on
yield relative to risk and cautious approach to the credit control

of its margin financing business.

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2019, it completed 5
financial advisory transactions (2018: 6). The operation reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$1.5 million for the year
(2018: HK$1.4 million).

¥ E R
BE_ZFT-NWF=A=+—HIEFE
£ 40 E S B A5 36 A £917,700,0008 70 (ZF
— /\4E £ 71,600,000457) © B A AR A 2 &R 4L
WS LB AR 2 SERME LS HH
WD DA KNI A AR B A T R AR A
£ 2 W /A TP 220,000,000 7T — I
PR EE - AT 2 S E W T753% ©
AT 2 RN R L A b T e )
TR Bk B T8 A ST R Bk o B8 AL 40
A AR TR 22 0 A B B AR B D 43% 2 A
59,200,000k 7T (& — /U4E 1 103,900,000
#I0) 5 E 1 £912,700,0009 6 (—FE— N\
4F 1 30,300,000% 70) TR H A8~ B RE
SREHER 2 ER - LEEHRARD R
[ 25 4 TR A T 5 O 1 B 4 28 5 B E B
Z NBERTEL -

HHAERECMEBEEARERRNFERNZ
T s TR - AR > RS RE 2
IS U A AR B 01.6% 2 £9340,300,0007
J6 (= F— J\AF 1 334,800,000%5 70) 1 4F [N
iR e B ZFH KR BT o A
ATFE—JUAEZ A = — H 2 B R R
i 4 R B AR A £53,732,600,000% T
(=F—/\MF=H=1—H :4,091,500,000
BT  cFRNMREBLEFZHME LA
20,100,000 76 ( — & — /\4F  BHEITC) o A
A B S 4 A A0 o i A B B 2 D ) A
3 DA YR8 RE T OR A A R
15 SR i -

AR A EMEEGH TN EE ETA
A B B R RS - R E = F— L
A=t —HIEFEECERAE (ZF
— N4 NIH) MBS E o BEERS IR AE
TR Bk 1523 3065 B 491,500,000 7T (—F— /A
4F 1 1,400,000%70) °

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##F&@m&EEHRAR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#



ITEHREEREEEBRRETH
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

Looking ahead, the global economic backdrop remains clouded
with uncertainties. Since the United States and China are
the most central players in the highly integrated global trade
network, escalating US-China commercial tensions represent a
significant risk to global financial markets. The aggressive US
trade policy remains being a liability to the market as rising
trade barriers is a particular issue for those markets that are most
dependent on global trade and investment, including Hong
Kong. Most of the Asian economies are in stronger positions
than years ago but given the integration in the global supply
chain, they are still vulnerable to the trade tension between
United State and China.

In the future, the business environment of the Group will
continue to be competitive but optimistic. The development
of the Greater Bay Area and China’s Belt & Road initiative are
expected to create opportunities for Hong Kong in the coming
decades. On the other hand, the increasing compliance-related
and system-related costs in meeting the regulatory requirements
may impact the cost efficiency and earnings growth of the

Group.

Dealing with the future challenges, the management of the
Group would review and adjust business strategies on regular
basis with a prudent and balanced risk management approach.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the business development and overall performance of
the Group in the future. The Group is endeavoring to render
comprehensive services to our affluent and high-net-worth clients
in order to maintain our clients’ confidence and loyalty. Given
our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients base,
strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the Group
is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in the
years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and value

for all shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$3,965.8 million as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$3,999.2 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$33.4 million or 0.8% over that of last financial year end.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the profit for the year
net of dividend distributed, and the net effect of the decrease in
equity component of convertible bonds and increase in retained

earning upon redemptions of convertible bonds during the year.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to HK$3,845.6 million (2018: HK$4,222.2 million), and its
liquidity as represented by current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 3.67 times (2018: 8.59 times). The decrease in
current ratio was mainly due to the reclassification of the liability
component of convertible bonds from non-current liabilities to
current liabilities as the convertible bonds will be mature within
one year from 31 March 2019.

Bank balances and cash on hand amounted to HK$422.9 million
(2018: HK$236.4 million). The increase in bank balances
and cash on hand was mainly due to the decrease in accounts
receivable of approximately HK$410.6 million, net of the cash
outflows in respect of the redemptions of convertible bonds of
HK$262.5 million.

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$60 million) and its unutilised banking facilities as at the
end of the year were approximately HK$905 million (2018:
HK$650 million), which were mainly secured by charges over
the Group’s clients’ pledged securities, a property owned by
a subsidiary of the Group and corporate guarantees issued by
the Company. The liability component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company amounted to HK$233.5 million as at
31 March 2019 (2018: HK$350.8 million). The decrease in the
liability component of convertible bonds was mainly due to the
redemptions of convertible bonds during the year. The Group’s
gearing ratio (total borrowing over equity attributable to owners
of the Company) as at 31 March 2019 was 0.06 (2018: 0.1).

The number of issued shares of Company amounted
to 2,500,000,000 shares as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
2,500,000,000 shares).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The business activities of the Group are not exposed to any

significant exchange risks.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the end of

the year.

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2019, leasehold land and building of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$105.5 million (2018: HK$105.9
million) were pledged for a banking facility granted to the
Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entity completed during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 59 (2018: 61) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was HK$18.9 million (2018: HK$16.7
million). The Group provides employee benefits including
mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options and

performance bonus to its staff.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK4 cents
per share, together with the interim dividend paid during the
year, amounting to the dividend of HK7 cents per share for this

financial year.

The final dividend will be payable on or about 10 September
2019 to sharcholders of the Company whose names appear on

the register of members of the Company on 3 September 2019.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the

following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the

Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2019 Annual 16 August 2019 - 21 August 2019,

General Meeting both dates inclusive

For entitlement 10 final dividend 2 September 2019 - 3 September 2019,
both dates inclusive (Record date being
3 September 2019)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2019
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on
21 August 2019, Wednesday and/or entitlement to the final
dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.

on the following dates:
Events Last date of lodgment of transfer documents

For attendance to 2019 Annual 15 August 2019, Thursday

General Meeting

For entitlement to final dividend 30 August 2019, Friday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team

and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019

EENEROBFECTE
AR AT DA 00 0 4 8 DI £

R T o IR N L R B /A i
it R
HAF=F-NF + ZZ-NEAATARE
WRREFLE “E-NEAR AR
m& AR (B EEmK)
HETFH “ENEAACRE
REZERTE “E-NEAAZREHR

(BFEEEMK) (REHAY
R-E-NERAZA)

AR ER M EAR TR U
ANAZ+—H(BE#=) 872 —F—LF
JBe SR A K BORBOR WS BT A
Je 288 5 SCA TR ] A I e S R B ZEA LR
F T A7 DU g = 0 BT 28 S A o\l 22 ey
5 RO AL A PR A ] Mok
T AU R 5 RE 1835 A A 54 > DU
68 i BEOB S T4 -

S| EXBFIH2RERH

HEF=F—%F + “Z-NEAATEA
REHFLE (2
&

BERTH “ENEARZTA
REZEHTE (BT

B

ANENREREFGEHES LR —E
A SR o A NIRRT -
X [ B T AR R SR BT AR 2K

K
HETRMEBERAT
Ey

HIE X

T —F-NAEANAZTRH

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##F&@m&EEHRAR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#



EEREREEEBEE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, aged 73, was appointed as our
executive Director and managing director on 24 September
2015. He is primarily responsible for the securities broking
and securities margin financing business. Before completion of
the spin-off of the Company from Get Nice Holdings Limited
(“GN Holdings”), Mr. Shum was the managing director and an
executive director of GN Holdings since its listing in June 2002
until his resignation on 7 April 2016. Mr. Shum has over 32

years of experience in the securities business.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, aged 49, was appointed as our executive
Director on 24 September 2015. He is also our chief executive
officer. Mr. Hung is primarily in charge of our Group’s overall
corporate strategy and the daily operations of our Group,
including business development and overall management.
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan joined GN Holdings in August 2000. He
was an executive director and the chief executive officer of GN
Holdings for the period from 28 April 2011 to 7 April 2016
and responsible for the overall operation and development of
business. During the period from 2002 to April 2011, Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan was the company secretary of GN Holdings and
was responsible for executing capital market and merger and
acquisition activities of GN Holdings. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan
is also a responsible officer under the SFO for the regulated
activity “advising on corporate finance”. He is also currently
an independent non-executive director of Silver Base Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 886), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan holds a bachelor of science degree from the University
of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Hung is a nephew of Mr. Hung Hon Man, our

non-executive Director and the chairman of our Board.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS - continued
Non-executive Director

Mr. Hung Hon Man, aged 64, was appointed as our Director
on 31 August 2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive
Director on 24 September 2015. He was appointed as the
chairman of our Board on 16 March 2016 and is a member of
both the remuneration and nomination committees. Mr. Hung
Hon Man is also the chairman and chief executive officer of GN
Holdings and the founder of GN Holdings. He is responsible
for the formulation of corporate strategy and the envisaging the
future direction of GN Holdings. He possesses over 24 years
of experience in the securities industry in Hong Kong. Being
the non-executive Director and chairman of the Company,
Mr. Hung Hon Man takes a consultative and supervisory role
in matters concerning the Group and is not involved in the

day-to-day management of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. She is
also the chairman of the remuneration, nomination and audit
committees. Ms. Ng had worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong for 14 years in the Financial Services Assurance
Department. Since leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers, she has
been a certified public accountant (Practising). Ms. Ng holds a
bachelor’s degree of business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong; and a master’s degree of business
administration and a master’s degree of laws in corporate and
financial law from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and the University of Hong Kong, respectively.
Ms. Ng is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is also an independent
non-executive director of Simplicity Holding Limited (stock
code: 8367) and KOALA Financial Group Limited (stock code:
8226). All of the above companies are listed on the GEM board
of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

DIRECTORS - continued
Independent Non-executive Directors — continued

Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. He has
been involved in the financial and securities industries for over
15 years and has extensive experience working in mutual funds,
securities brokerage and insurance brokerage financial services
business with financial institutions in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung
is currently a chief executive of PC International (HK) Limited
and Responsible officer of PC Securities Limited. He holds
a bachelor’s degree in mathematics from the University of

Waterloo.

Mr. Chan Ka Kit, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 March 2016. He has been involved
in the financial and insurance industries since 2001 and has
extensive operational and management experience in mutual
funds and insurance brokerage financial services business with
financial institutions in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently
an associate director of AMG Wealth Management Limited.
Mr. Chan holds an executive master’s degree in business

administration and is a Certified Financial Planner.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Ng Hon Sau, Larry, aged 50, is a responsible officer and a

director of our major subsidiaries namely Get Nice Securities
Limited (“GNS”) and Get Nice Futures Company Limited
(“GNFCL”). Being the Group’s chief operating officer, Mr. Ng
is primarily responsible for supervising the securities and futures
broking and securities margin financing businesses. Mr. Ng
joined GN Holdings in July 2001. He has had over 26 years of
experience in the financial industry, with 24 years in securities
and futures and several years in corporate banking. Mr. Ng holds
a bachelor of science degree in finance from California State

University, Fresno located in the United States.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued

Mr. Cheng Wai Ho, aged 55, is a responsible officer and a
director of our major subsidiaries namely GNS and GNFCL.
Mr. Cheng takes up the management role in the supervision of
the human resources department of the Group. He also oversees
our overall implementation of registration procedures to ensure
all relevant staff are properly registered under the SFO. Prior to
joining GN Holdings, he had been a dealing director of three
other securities firms for more than six years. He is a member of

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. Chiu Man Chun, aged 34, is the financial controller of
the Group and company secretary of the Company. He worked
in an international accounting firm for over nine years before
joining the Group. He is responsible for managing finance and
compliance matters within the Group. Mr. Chiu is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and finance from the

University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Kam Wing Ho, aged 40, and is the head of information
technology department of our Group. He is responsible for the
development and supervision of the information technology
system of our Group. He joined GN Holdings in January 2011.
He has over 14 years working experience in the information and
technology field. Mr. Kam holds degree of bachelor of science

from Victoria University, Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with the
view of being a transparent and responsible organization which
is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The
Directors believe that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investors’

confidence.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year ended
31 March 2019 is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board is of
the opinion that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
titled “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” (the “Code”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and
plans, and oversees their implementation to further the healthy
growth of the Company, in the interests of its shareholders.
The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, financial information, appointment of

Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions

entered into by the abovementioned officers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities. In addition, the Board has also
established three Board Committees and has delegated various

responsibilities to them as set out in their terms of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six members, half of
these Directors are non-executive and independent of the
management. The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Group’s affair. The Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the

requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, two of the Directors are
executives, namely, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing
Director) and Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer),
one of them is non-executive Director, Mr. Hung Hon Man
(Chairman of the Board, Member of Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee) and three of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen
(Chairman of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee), Mr. Chan Ka Kit (Member of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee), and Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald (Member of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has at all times
met the requirements of rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION - continued

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors and senior management”
of this annual report. The Board members have no financial,
business, family or other relationships with each other save for
that Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer) is a nephew of
Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman of the Board and non-executive
Director).

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has at all times
adopted the board diversity policy. It sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
its effectiveness. The Company endeavors to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board
members will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board
diversity policy, the Company secks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, culture and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Board has revised and adopted the board diversity policy
on 26 April 2019 and will review from time to time the
implementation of the policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his appointment. This is to ensure the new employee possesses
an appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and has full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory

requirements.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts
have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - continued

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie A A

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan T iy 3 5 A
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Hung Hon Man S '@ e
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen S8 2+

Mr. Chan Ka Kit e e

Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald JRAETLIEE

EERIIIREXRE-&

oA IR A B AT SR R

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

relevant topics
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD PRACTICES

Pursuant to the Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times
cach year to discuss the Group’s business development, operation
and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days is given to
all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed
to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors have
access to Board papers and related materials, and are provided
with adequate information which enables the Board to make an
informed decision on the matters to be discussed and considered
at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any

reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have full and timely access to the management for enquiries
and to obtain all relevant information and the Directors can seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at

the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

During the year, all Directors have been provided with monthly
updates by the Group’s management, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position,
recent developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep
them abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to
discharge their duties under the relevant requirements of the

Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

During the year, 5 Board meetings and 1 general meeting have

EXERESEZEEER

JAARAEJE > A T ERAT TR E ek
— WK G - #H 3 A 5 0 E Tl
al\ 7 2K &k o kR R

of the Directors in the meetings are as follows: mE

been held. Directors may participate either in person or through

electronic means of communications. Details of the attendance

Attendance/Number of meetings during the year

REFEEHREZEERY CETZEHERY

Annual
Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting
EX® ENZRET REZEE FMZEEEe RREBFAS
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie SR S5 NARER  NARER  NARE 1/1
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan 3 3 e 55 NIANER  NAREH  NAREH 11
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Hung Hon Man WL S 45 NIARER 12 203 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYFHTES
Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen ALt 5/5 202 2/2 313 0/1
Mr. Chan Ka Kit PR R Se 515 212 212 313 1/1
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald SR ILIEAE 515 2/2 212 313 1/1

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”) also contains provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such

Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors were appointed for fixed term of three years
commencing from 8 April 2017. They are subject to retirement

by the rotation under the provision of the Articles.

According to the Article 108(a), at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from

office by rotation.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and Mr. Hung Sui Kwan will retire by

rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished

price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are complementary, but importantly, they are distinct

and separate with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman), provides leadership and
is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and

appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer), focuses on
implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-
to-day management and operations. He is also responsible for
developing strategic plans and formulating the company practices
and procedures, business objectives, and risk assessment for the
Board’s approval. Mr. Hung Sui Kwan is a nephew of Mr. Hung
Hon Man, the Chairman of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year, the Board at all-time met the minimum
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors, and complied
with the requirement that these should include one such Director
with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen has the appropriate professional qualifications and

experience in financial matters required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS - continued

Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the Company
has received a written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his/her independence to the

Company.

The Board considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgement and they
also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy that, in

recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for future growth.
The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, among other things, the Group’s general financial
position, capital and debt level, future cash requirements and
availability of business operations, business strategies and future
development needs, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Articles and all applicable laws and

regulations.

BYFHATESE-&

AT iR Z HE > A 7 B s &
S IR BAAT I A B S S P AR 28 T %
0 5 T AR AR

WG R 5 = 44 ST JE AT I AR A
S B O TG A A L 1% S IR A L i AR A
BE3.1306 T # 2 By AR HE o

IR 2 BUR

AN ) RS BR AN BCE BOR R i R EUE IR
JBe SR > AR 24 ) ZR MR R A B TE A B ol
fii > LAHEB) R ARIG R - #3 a] 21
Ie] FBE SR R K 3 IR S o A B B B4
ZAE AR AR B e B RS R AR T
YRR o i kAT AT SRS IR AT I > g p
JH%E (L e 4E) A5 B 2 — B ik
o EA RAEH K RARBLERFR 2
T AE B B - S5 M R AR B R
B YRAT B SR 2 AT AT R A B R m] RE A
o MR 2 AT AT AL TR 3R R 2 w] R A AT ]
Jie S5 N ZE 8 S A R A B B A ik A e ik
RUE T Z AT R -

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##F&@m&EEHRAR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#



ERERKRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively

in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the Group.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Pursuant to the levels of authority approved by the Board, the
senior management executes day-to-day operations unless the
subject matter exceeds the authority granted by the Board or
relates to any matters specifically reserved to the Board, they

would seek approval from the Board.

The Board has established a (i) Nomination Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee; and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seck independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i)
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
on a regular basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable
candidates for directorship after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure the fairness
and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. In
identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the nomination committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members,
being Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Chan Ka Kit, and Mr.
Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There
were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019.
The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(ii) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board; and

(iii) recommended the re-election of Directors at the annual
general meeting.

Nomination Policy

On 26 April 2019, the Board has adopted the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to appoint additional
directors or re-elect directors. The Nomination Policy can assist
the Company in achieving board diversity and enhancing the
effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such
as the reputation integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Group’s business will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In addition, a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and knowledge would be
considered. In the case of independent non-executive Directors,
the candidates must further satisfy the independence criteria set
out in the Listing Rules.

EESREREESEETZZER
E_:{fg
REZES
-2 % B E W FERE 5 G) € B e E
B 1 ZE 4 ~ R R AR 5 (i) A 5 A R 4
NI A5 S S FEE A A% 1) 3 e M A
M3 N > DABECR T A 34 AP B
/MMﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ T S o %@
) FE N 5 K ) o S 4R 0 o R R R
ﬁ’%ziéﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁék
A AL S H R R AR JRE - BLEAT
%%ﬁ% TR R SO IR
$%%

&4 % B & BUIRE b P9 4% 8 B AR - 0 Bl 7

k@%tﬁﬁ%éaﬁi% ~ P SO
s BRI Rk A o

AT EEHFERDVEIT—REE 14

ZEGREE _Z—NFE=H=1T—HI

NG EITHKERE AT EgRE

BEOENFEZH = HIEEE R LT

Z EBTAEEINM T -

() wFAG 8 AL JF BT S A AL

Gi) MiefHESF G2 B ARk
Jufb s &

(iii) FHRBORAFER G ERFIEEHRRE -

1 R

TR —JUEMA RN H > EREGRA
RABOR (TEZBOR]) > & sl s A2 7
%E@%%$&E%%$Zﬁ% e I e e
J¥ o $ 4 BURA B AL " 8 H gl B
Z oAl 42 T8 5 B ROR e H AR SRR

1:“’5 HE o

AP AR R SR BT 8 2
PR A A AR~ SORE R A B BEA
) IR ] 2 R G A 4R 3B 2 LR
BB o BLAh - — R AN Z uAL B 7%
JE > AR ER BRI R B - 4R - S0fE R
B HOEKE B - B Re Mk o S JF
PATE R Z Rk N — 6 L
Rl By s 2 o S HE )

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##F&@m&EEHRAR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#



ERERKRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, being Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen (Chairman of
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Chan Ka
Kit, and Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald.

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. There
were three meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019.
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the remuneration of Directors and senior

management of the Group; and

(ii) recommended the basic salary increment of Directors and

staff of the Group.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

According to the code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the annual
remuneration (including bonus) of the members of the senior
management of the Group by band for the year ended 31 March
2019 is set out below:
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Up to HK$1,000,000 AN HE#1,000,00045 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to up to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 JC %2,000,0007 7T

Audit Committee ERZEE®

The Audit Committee is responsible for making T Z B g AT - A KRR S S I A
recommendations to the Board the appointment, re-appointment ST o) S O O O R > M R A
and removal of the external auditors and has authority to raise SCE AT, S AR R BB B AR W]

questions regarding the resignation or dismissal of the auditors;
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management systems and to review the Group’s
interim and annual consolidated financial statements. The
Audit Committee has access to and maintains an independent

communication with the external auditor and management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen, Mr. Chan Ka Kit, and Mr.
Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald, all of whom are not involved in the
day-to-day management of the Company. Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman

of the Audit Committee.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee — continued

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. There were two
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2019. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
March 2019 is set out below:

(i) reviewed the annual consolidated financial statements and
the announcement of the final results for the year ended 31
March 2018;

(if) reviewed and discussed with the management about risk

management and effectiveness of internal control;

(iii) reviewed the connected transactions and continuing

connected transactions of the Group;

(iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and

relevant disclosures;
(v) reviewed the re-appointment of external auditors;

(vi) reviewed the non-competition undertaking from Get Nice
Holdings Limited (“GN Holdings”); and

(vii) reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements and
the announcement of the interim results for the period
ended 30 September 2018.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under

the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2019.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued
Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2019. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2019 on a going concern basis.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance, and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019, the Board:

(i) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(if) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently;

(iii) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;

and

(iv) ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.

In financial year ended 31 March 2019, the annual and interim
results were published within three months and two months,
respectively, after the end of the relevant period to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on

pages 86 to 92.

Independent auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Mazars CPA Limited, the

Company’s external auditor, provided the following services to

P wmE — &

BYRBENEE

Ay F B SN R A R BR (B ) ' et
fill <k 5 T A BR 2% 7 (L6 8wt ) 3 455 B
B ¥R 0 AT WO A SE R B8R S92 H Y
[ 98 7 A% B ot | — 6

BYZBOME
WE_F-NE=ZA=+—HILFERN -
AN A Z SN AL B P R AR (B ) &t

the Group: Vi 5575 i A PR ) 1) A 4R 142 11 DL RS
2019 2018

ZEBE-RF | CENE

HK$’000 HK$000

FET THs T

Audit services 0% IR s 1,400 1,350
Taxation services T 85 TR 755 23 22
Total At 1,423 1,372

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The Company has received an annual confirmation from GN
Holdings that GN Holdings has complied with the terms of the
deed of non-competition undertaking (“Deed”) dated 16 March
2016 in favour of the Group as referred to pages 193 to 195
in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 March 2016. The
Company has also adopted appropriate procedures to monitor

that the Deed is being observed.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company, to
the best of their knowledge and beliefs, are of the view that GN
Holdings has complied with the terms of the Deed for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and has not entered into any transaction

with the intent to breach the terms of the Deed during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On an annually basis, the internal audit personnel will
present a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has adopted
its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to
pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes
(i) identifying ownership of risks, business objectives and risks
that could affect the achievement of objectives; (ii) analyzing
the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio
accordingly; and (iii) considering the risk responses and ensure
effective communication to the Board/senior management and
ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register has
been maintained as a tool for documenting risks and actions to

manage each risk on ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimize the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are

acceptable and how to address those that are not.

The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems has been

conducted and considers them effective and adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosures are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of

Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of information
to the public through public announcements and the

Company’s website;
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION
— continued

e the access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis such that employees
who are in possession of inside information are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs
and only designated persons are authorised to speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external

parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chiu Man Chun is the company secretary of the Company
and a full time employee of the Company. He has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters. Mr. Chiu confirmed
that he has complied with all the required qualifications,
experience and training requirements under Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on
the Company’s website www.getnicefg.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and

plans.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
— continued

The Directors and the members of the various board committees
attend and answer questions raised at the general meetings of
the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at the general

meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company by mail at the Company’s principal office address
in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist (s) by the Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 10/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza,
183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary
forwards communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the Board and communications relating to ordinary
business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries to the Chief

Executive Officer.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS - continued

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Sharcholders are welcome to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How sharcholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there had been no

significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG
Report”) is issued by Get Nice Financial Group Limited and
its subsidiaries. We are pleased to present our annual update
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (“Reporting Period”) on
sustainability performance, accomplishments and challenges over

the past few years.

The Board is committed to making a healthy and positive impact
on the environment and on society. To accomplish this, the
Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the Group’s
risks relating to environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
areas, consequently ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG
risk management and internal control systems are in place. The
Board has formulated a clear vision and a strategic plan to follow

and monitor these impacts in our daily operations.

In accordance with the various environmental and social issues
outlined on the Listing Rules “ESG Reporting Guide”, we will
discuss the areas that are material and relevant to the Group.
Priorities are set based on the view of management and the
concerns of our stakeholders. We engage with key stakeholders,
including but not limited to our customers, service providers,
shareholders, and our employees in daily operations through
meetings and interviews to understand their specific views on the

relevance and materiality of various ESG aspects.

ABOUT GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED

The Company is an investment holding company with our
principal business being the provision of financial services,
including securities and futures dealing and broking, options
broking, securities margin financing and corporate finance

services.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

The information in this ESG Report covers the operations of the
following major business units during the year ended 31 March
2019:

Get Nice Financial Group and its Subsidiaries

o Get Nice Financial Group Limited (“GNFGL”)
o Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”)
*  Get Nice Futures Company Limited (GNFCL”)
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The preparation and presentation of the information in this
Report are in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
The Group has prepared this ESG Report to meet the “Comply
or Explain” provisions, of which mandatory Key Performance
Indicators (“KPI(s)”) and some recommended KPIs are disclosed.
As such, the Group has been able to produce a balanced report,

focusing on our key material issues.

According to the guideline, the following principles are

underpinned:

1. Materiality: Environmental, social, and governance issues
that have major impacts on investors and other stakeholders

must be set out in this ESG Report.

2. Quantitative: KPIs must be measurable and applicable
to valid comparisons under appropriate conditions. They
must also be able to describe the purpose and impacts of

quantitative information.

3. Balance: This ESG Report must provide an unbiased
picture of the environmental, social, and governance
performance of the Group. It should avoid selecting,
omitting, or presenting formats that may inappropriately

influence a decision or judgment by the reader.

4.  Consistency: This ESG Report should be consistent and
disclose statistical methodologies to allow for meaningful
comparisons of related data over time. Any changes to the

methods used must be specified in the ESG Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with stakeholders is a significant part of the business
strategy; it is essential for us to understand their concerns
and priorities regarding our daily operations. The Group
communicates with the stakeholders, including but not limited
to our customers, shareholders and investors, suppliers and

employees in an open and proactive way.
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Result of Key Stakeholders Assessment during the Reporting Period
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—  Compliance operation

Key Stakeholder Key Issues Concerned Major Communication Channels
BN E BRBREE ITREBERE
Customers —  Product responsibility —  Meeting

—  The environment and natural —  Company website

resources
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Employees —  Remuneration and welfare benefits | —  Employee activities

—  Health & Safety —  Interview/Meeting
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Shareholders & Investors —  Integrity —  Shareholders’ general meeting

—  Annual and interim Report
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—  mplEE — AP R
Suppliers —  Anti-corruption —  Meeting

—  Fair cooperation —  Site visit
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The Group takes active measures to promote stakeholder
relations and communications. Beside regularly issuing
annual and interim reports, circulars, and announcements to
stakeholders, the Group often arranges stakeholder meetings
to provide opportunities to maintain communication with
the Board of Directors. In addition, the Group also gives
stakeholders such opportunities in daily operations through
meetings and interviews, distribution of questionnaires,

especially with regard to the establishment of ESG criteria.
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FEEDBACK

The Group discloses business information regularly to investors
and the public through our website: www.getnicefg.com.hk. We
also welcome investors and shareholders to write to the Group or
send their enquiries to investor@getnice.com.hk and share their

views with the Board.

A. ENVIRONMENT

Global climate change has, and will continue one of the
most pressing global environmental issues. The year-to-year
increase in emission of greenhouse gases (“GHGs”) is
closely related to the recent extreme weathers, including
heavy rains, flooding, droughts, heat wave, etc. Apart from
being an active participant in the community, the Group
acknowledges that it is a member of the ‘global village’.
Therefore, we seek to utilize our resources more efficiently
and reduce our GHG emissions in order to ensure a
safer, greener future for the next generations. Sustainable
development is one of the key elements in our vision and
the Group makes an active effort to reduce its influence on

the environment through the following measures.

1. Emissions
As our Group is principally engaged in the provision
of financial services, we do not produce significant
emission discharges into water, land and air, such as
nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and other respiratory
suspended particles, nor do we produce a significant

volume of hazardous waste from our businesses.

Our environmental impacts stem primarily from
energy use and GHG emissions associated with
the operation of offices, its use of vehicles, paper
usage and production of non-hazardous waste. Our
environmental strategy is primarily focused on
reducing energy use and GHG emissions, purchasing
sustainably certified paper and disposing of our key

waste streams in a responsible manner.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

1. Emissions — continued

(a)

Greenhouse Gases Emissions

Our major sources of air and GHG emissions are
mostly from electricity used in daily operations
and fuel consumption from 5 vehicles owned by
the Group for business travel, as well as one yacht
for the purpose of business engagement with

clients.

The total GHG generated by the Group during
the Reporting Period was approximately 364.76
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, with an
intensity of approximately 6 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent per employee, comprising
the totality of our electricity consumption, fuel

consumption and disposal of paper waste.
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Total Green House Gas Emissions during the Reporting Period

REBANBRERRAKHE
Estimated Estimated
Emission Emission Intensity Intensity
(In tonnes of (In tonnes of (Emission/ (Emission/
C0y) C0) Employee) Employee)
Scope of GHG Emission Emission Source 2018-2019 2017-2018 2018-2019 2017-2018
CHE ¢ CHE ¢ EE EE
(M-E1KEE) (M-E(KER) (SEAIHNE) (BRRIHRE)
“g-)\% 28—t Z%-N\F Z%-tF
BERBAHER BHKR E2R-nE Z¥-NE ECE-NF ECE-N\F
Scope 1
%1

Direct Emission Consumption of Fuel by the Group’s

vehicles & yacht

kb RS D AR 10744 428 182 187
Scope 2

L)

Indirect Emission Purchased electricity

B BAES 250,63 262,99 425 431
Scope 3

683

Other Indirect Emission Disposal of paper waste

HlomE b BifEE 6.69 735 0.11 0.12
Total

it 364.76 384,62 6.18 6.30
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

1.

Emissions — continued

(b) Waste Management
The Group takes pride in its waste management
and is committed to the proper handling and
disposal of all wastes from our business activities.
Due to the nature of our business, the Group did
not generate a significant amount of hazardous
waste during the Reporting Period. Most of our
non-hazardous waste was paper, with a weight
of approximately 1.4 tonnes (2018: 1.5 tonnes),
equivalent to approximately 0.024 tonnes (2018:

0.025 tonnes) per employee.

(c) Compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact concerning air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water or land, and the generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to properly and efficiently
conserving resources. To fulfill our environmental
commitment, we implement multiple measures in
enhancing energy efficiency, minimising the use
of paper, reducing water consumption and driving
behavioural changes in employees. Through active
monitoring and managing the use of resources, we aim
to reduce our operating costs as well as our carbon
footprints. Given the Group is principally engaged
in financial services, we do not use a significant
amount of packaging materials for finished products.
Nevertheless, for other resources consumed from
our business activities, the Group is committed to
the proper use of all resources. Details of energy and
water consumptions will be discussed in the following

sections.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

2. Use of Resources — continued

A RIE-

|

2. BEREFEA-E&

Resources Consumption during the Reporting Period

BEHnnERER
Intensity Intensity
Consumption Consumption (Consumption/ (Consumption/
Quantity Quantity Employee) Employee)
Resources Unit 2018-2019 2017-2018 2018-2019 2017-2018
BE BE
#RE #RE (BRBIKRE) (BABIXRE)
ZE-N\F “E-tF “E-N\F “E-tF
&R Efl EIZ-NF “E-N\E EIR-NE EIR-NE
Electricity kWh
ik K% 317,250.00 332,901.00 5377.00 5,410.00
Fuel L
e # 49,900.00 53,200.00 846.70 87213
(a) Energy (a) AEVR
Due to the nature of our business in the financial B A AR R ER R

sector, we do not use a significant amount of
electricity. Our electricity consumption came
chiefly from office operations. We acknowledge
reducing energy consumption can significantly
reduce carbon footprint; thus, we have adopted
various initiatives in our operation. During
the Reporting Period, the total electricity
consumption was approximately 317,250 kWh
(2018: 332,901 kWh) with an intensity of
approximately 5,377 kWh (2018: 5,410 kWh)
per employee; the total fuel consumption,
comprised of gasoline and diesel oil, was
approximately 49,900 litres (2018: 53,200 litres)
with an intensity of approximately 846 litres

(2018: 872 litres) per employee.
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(& — )\ 332,901 %
) s A R H 15,377
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

2
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Use of Resources — continued

(b) Water

The sustainable and responsible use of water
resources is a global issue. We are aware that
shortages, excessive demand and negligent usage
of water could pose serious problems. Once again,
due to the nature of our business, we do not
use nor discharge a significant amount of water.
However, in order to raise awareness on water
conservation, the Group promotes water-saving
practices in the workplace. For instance, we offer
tips to conserve water and share with employees
internally to raise water-saving awareness and

encourage them to reduce consumptions.

Reduction Strategy

The Group recognizes the importance of saving

energy, reducing waste, and maintaining a green office.

The following measures have been adopted in line with

our commitment to the protection of the environment

in our daily operation. We also educate our employees

on how to follow these measures effectively.

(a)

Reduce Greenhouse Gases Emissions

We have implemented a number of measures
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in order
to alleviate our impact on the environment.
For example, we now encourage employees to
maximize the use of electronic communication
equipment and carry out general discussions and
communications through long-distance telephone
calls, video conferencing, or other online
communication tools in order to reduce or replace
non-essential business trips and avoid emitting

pollutants as a result of transportation.

A.

85—
ERERA-&

22

(b)

7K

EEEE D& R R
BR R A ERGERE - MR
KR A B R OR ROR
i %9 7K AT 5] B0 fik AR R o
[ Aok b > A R AT A SE 5 1
B A A A SRR
B K o R B E KW
ARk o AN AE AR B R
EH & K % o B3k
Bt FAM AR L E B K R
1 O I SN = R O = D
PR B KRRk - I B
i B T3> K e

B A R

A 45 T TR W B A BE TR - D TR B
R HERR ok LI B A o K
92 PR DA 150 > HBRAE B
B R BRI Y R G o AT IR
HOE B TN A A T LA 15 T -

(a)

T i = SR

FAM e th 22 TE A5 it R =
SR PR DLCD BB B
W o BEOIAC L > TRAM BLIEE
BB B T3 8 A 1 R
B ol DR R A LR
Bk A A TR
AT — M wT dw A R DA B
D s IR A6 Y H 2 Rl
e 5 700 4 iy A A B 15 e W B
K e

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %2R



RIE - HERERERE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENT - continued A BIE-—E

3. Reduction Strategy — continued 3. BINRK-&
(b) Reduce Paper Waste (b) W AR

Given the nature of our business, we use paper
for a variety of business activities such as
brochures, customer mailings and statements,
as well as daily operations within our offices.
In order to minimize the impact of our paper
usage, we seek to source sustainable paper from
the independently certified “Programme for the
Endorsement of Forest Certification”, which
produces paper using eucalyptus pulp. Since all
eucalyptus pulp comes from sustainable forests,
we believe implementing and continuing this
practice enables us to support the sustainable

development of the forest.

We also seek to use paper efficiently in our
operations. We offer and encourage paperless
billing options for customers by granting
incentive rebates. As at 31 March 2019,
approximately 75% (2018: 70%) of the GNS’s
new customers were receiving electronic
statements, an increase of 5% in comparison to
the previous financial year. 47% (2018: 45%)
of existing customers were receiving electronic
statements, an increase of 2% from 2018. We
proactively encourage the Group’s shareholders
to receive financial reports or circulars through
the Stock Exchange and Group websites, thereby
reducing our paper usage. On average, the
number of printed copies for each distribution of
financial reports or circulars was approximately
390 (2018: 400), a reduction of 2.5% compared

to last year.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

3.

Reduction Strategy — continued

(b) Reduce Paper Waste — continued

\

A RIE-E

3.

B A SR B — 4R
(b) WA — 4

Receiving Electronic Statements during the Reporting Period

BEMABMEFLE

New Customers
MEF
Existing Customers

BAEEF

We have also adopted smart printing methods
by modifying the format of account application
forms and client agreements to reduce paper
usage in GNS and GNFCL. We advocate for the
reusing and recycling of paper by placing paper
trays in designated office locations to collect
recyclable papers and envelopes. We encourage
employees to reuse paper and print on both
sides. On the other hand, we are in pursuit of a
paperless office by encouraging electronic means
for communication, such as the intranet, email

and other internal circular systems.

g2 1ER
2018-2019 2017-2018
—2-N\E —B—t%F
ETE-hEF EZE-N\HF
75% 70%
47% 45%
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

3. Reduction Strategy — continued

(©)

Reduce Electricity Consumption

In order to reduce our electricity consumption,
we have adopted various initiatives in our daily
operations. We frequently remind employees to
turn off electrical appliances when not in use,
and purchase energy-efficient office equipment,
often taking energy labels on said equipment
into account, using models with higher energy
efficiency. We have also switched to LED lighting
systems and increased natural lighting. We set
the air conditioner in any office to a temperature
of no lower than 22 C in summer and no lower
than 24 C in winter. All of the aforementioned
measures have contributed to a significant

reduction in energy consumption.

Recycle Waste

Apart from reducing our consumption of energy,
the Group also adopts waste recycling initiatives
in its operations. Our waste production is
relatively insignificant, and in line with our
responsibilities, the Group focuses on the
recycling of its waste. For instance, waste paper is
collected by reputable recycling companies, waste
newspapers are delivered to recycling companies
on weekly basis, and used printer cartridges and
toners are recycled. In addition, we also establish
recycling stations in our offices to collect waste

for recycling.
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A. ENVIRONMENT - continued

4.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Evidently, with respect to our business nature
and activities, the impact of the Group on the
environment and natural resources is not significant.
Our consumption of energy mainly stemmed from
the use of electricity, water and papers in office areas.
During the Reporting Period, we have stipulated a
number of measures to reduce the use of resources and
disposal of waste. With regard to the raw materials
used in our products, our product designers seek to use
environmentally friendly materials to reduce damage to
the environment throughout the product lifecycle. Our
selection of suppliers and service providers also adopt
various green initiatives, of which include a sense of
responsibility for environmental protection, delivery
time constitute part of the criteria, in addition to the
quality of goods and services. With the aim of further
reducing our paper consumption, where conditions
appropriate, the Group’s store its documents, records

and archives in electronic files instead of paper.

We ensure that our employees and stakeholders
are aware of our green policy on environmental
protection through email and internal bulletin boards.
In addition, we remind our employees to minimize
the waste generated from work and seek to create an
environmental conscience. We also encourage them to
make full use of electronic means to communicate with
customers and suppliers in hopes of further reducing

the paper consumption of the Group.

We will continue to assess the environmental risks
of our business, review our environmental practices
and ensure the compliance with relevant laws and

regulations.
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B. SOCIAL

1.

Employment and Labour Practices

We are firmly committed to building a strong team of
employees who contribute our business mission and
objectives. Human resource policies and managements
approaches across our business units are reviewed
regularly to ensure that they comply with requirements
of local laws and regulations, as well as support

business growth and employee development.

As the end of the Reporting Period, The Group had 59
full-time employees. In order to function within the
continuously growing business scale, we acquire talents
from different countries with financial experience or

educational backgrounds to join our local team.
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Percentage of Employees by Gender
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B Male
B

M Female
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Percentage of Employees by Age
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W 46-59
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBER AT o

Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(a)

Diverse and Fair Recruitment

We uphold equal employment opportunities
for all employees in relation to all human
resources matters including but not limited
to recruitment, training, promotion, transfer
and benefits, regardless of gender, religiosity,
pregnancy, family status, marital status, race and
disability. In selecting suitable applicants for
a job, all prospects are treated fairly. Selection
criteria are built on their qualifications, abilities
and experience. Our employee handbook is
available both in print and online in order to help
employees familiarise themselves with the Group’s

policies and requirements.

We seck candidates representing a wide range
of backgrounds and experiences for positions at
all levels. In the Reporting Period, the Group
delivers internship and work opportunities for
students in local and foreign academic institute
and universities. Through participating in
skill-building workshops and meeting with our
senior leaders who represent their backgrounds
and experiences, we provide opportunities for
students to learn about careers in the financial

sector.

Promotion and Remuneration

The Group is constantly improving its
employment mechanism. We review our
employees’ remuneration on an annual basis
through performance assessment. Starting salaries
may vary in different positions according to skill,
knowledge and marketing range. We adhere to
the principle of fairness in providing promotion
opportunities for outstanding employees. We
also particularly encouraged female participation
in top management and at managerial and

operational levels.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1. Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(c)

Supporting Health and Wellness

We are continually expanding our programs
and benefits to support employee health and
well-being. During the Reporting Period, we
provide our employees with medical benefits
which cover in various areas — from general
outpatient services to physiotherapy, Chinese
herbal treatment, bone-setting treatment and a

multitude of other inpatient services.

We recognise that maintaining a healthy work-life
balance is essential to the health and well-being

of our employees and their families. The Group

acknowledges the need for the practice of

breastfeeding among female employees with
young children, therefore we provide private
and hygienic rooms to mothers to fulfill such
requirements during office hours. In addition,
we offer flexible work hours to support parents
and others who need alternative time schedules,
in addition to marriage leave and compassionate
leave for employees in need. On the other hand,
we encourage continual learning by providing
examination leave to employees who need to take

examinations rclating to our business.

The Group invited the Health Department to
give a health seminar in July 2018 to raise health

awareness among our CINP]OYCCS.
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A health seminar organized by the Health Department in July 2018 (Photo 1 & 2)
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1.

Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(d) An Inclusive Culture

In addition to our support of the health
and wellness of our employees, we strive to
promote an inclusive and supportive culture
where our employees are treated with dignity
and respect. We achieve this by strengthening
the communication between the Group and
employees. Human Resources Department
regularly meets employees to understand their
needs and concerns in daily operation and takes
the responsibility to review and monitor regularly

on the working procedures, benefits and policies.

For us, every new employee is part of our values
and motivations to achieve higher. We, therefore,
provide a comprehensive orientation program
to new joiners who are equipped with the

followings:

e The Group’s structure
e Employee’s role and responsibility
*  Visiting the office

e Other procedures and regulations
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1. Employment and Labour Practices — continued 1.

In addition, we believe “A healthy body makes a
healthier mind and happier person”. Therefore,
we provide our employees with a nutritional
lunch at our office every working day. The dietary
includes a wide variety of cuisine such as meat,
fish, vegetables and soup with an emphasis of
“less oil, salt and sugar”. This has been a Group
practice for more than 22 years and is one of the
many fringe benefits that our employees share.
We also encourage our employee to bring the
leftover food and rice to their homes to reduce
food waste. In addition, the Group provides a

variety of fruits freely to employees and account
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executives on a regular basis.
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Photo 4
3 4

Photo 3

A healthy body makes a healthier mind and happier person — the Group provides fruits to employees and account executives on
a regular basis (Photo 3 & 4)
B 1 (T (N RGBT R KA R ) 5 LR KT A R KR (3K 4)
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &£ mEBER AT o

Employment and Labour Practices — continued

(d)

An Inclusive Culture — continued

This inclusive culture stems from our Group’s
management team, who recognise that caring
for employees is one of the Group’s core values.
Our management team furthers these efforts by
providing employees with pastries and cakes. For
example, delicious cakes are provided freely to
employees and account executives, one example
of which are Longevity Buns on the seventh
day (Renri) of the first lunar month, of which
culturally means celebrating the birthdays of each

employee and account executive.
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Photo 5
L] 5

In celebration of 2019 Renri, we had Longevity Bun together and wishing

everyone a fruitful and healthy year.
BEW —E—ILFEANH » TR T5H
Lg - G

Grow with Our Employees

The success of the Group relies on its employees
— the most valuable part of the Group, reflected
by their actual commitment and loyalty. The
Board is proud of the very low turnover rate,
which reflects strong employee satisfaction and
engagement with the Group. The turnover
rate of employees during the Reporting Period
was 3.84%. Many of our employees have been
working in our Group for more than 10 years. As
at end of the Reporting Period, we accumulated
a total of 17 full-time employees serving the
Group for more than 20 years; and 16 full-time
employees serving the Group for more than 10

years.

(e)
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B. SOCIAL - continued

1. Employment and Labour Practices — continued

()

Grow with Our Employees — continued
On 21 December 2018,

(:hl'iSU’IlzlS party to exXpress our gl“dtitkldﬁ to

the Group held a

our employees and account executives for their
support and service as well as to foster team spirit
within the Group. The employees and account
executives enjoyed a cheerful and memorable

dinner.
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B. ft&—
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1. BREZEIER-&

(e)

A cheerful and memorable Christmas Party on 21 December 2018

B N A ] A H AR T Y iy A s
Compliance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations in our employment and
labour process, including but not limited
to recruitment, dismissal, promotion and
remuneration of employees regardless of where
we operate. The rights and interests of employees
are protected in accordance with laws and

regulations.
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B. SOCIAL - continued
2. Health and Safety

The Group strives to foster a safe working
environment where all individuals are supported to
succeed and can develop to their fullest potential.
Given the principal businesses of the Group relates
to financial services, we do not have substantial safety

hazards within our office environment.

To provide employees with good and safe working

conditions, the initiatives below were adopted:

*  Applied “Bactakleen” antibacterial treatment to
clean the air circulation system

* Installed two sets of water filtration systems to
provide healthier water for employees

e Placed air purifiers in the office area

e Purchased ergonomics chairs for employees

*  Displayed the safety and health pamphlets issued
by Occupational Safety & Health Council on
our intranet and notices board (For example,
Safe Manual Handling and Workplace Stretching
Exercise, Get Moving and do Regular Exercise,
Eat smart and Build a Healthy diet etc.)

e Arranged professional services providers to
clean the carpet, telephone sets and computer
equipment to reduce possible germs spread

e Prohibited smoking and drinking liquor in the
workplace during office hour

*  Equipped Human Resources Department with

counselling skills

B. #t€2—&

22

RERZE

A AR By i Sr — % A ) A
B XA MAEBH
iR o BN A G E B
B Bl e B A TR ALE T
FERFEANRA YW RERN L2
&

M T B TR R AN 4 T
TEERBE - CHRM DL N it

o fHH TSR P R A G
BERIERASR

o HWMMIE KRS E TR
bR el R Y K

o TR LS EE B ICE 22 MR L
i

oy B TWEE O\ HE B R

o TR TR A K B R R Bl T
LA R R T R A
fa BRI 7 (An Byl 2 4R A
B T AE T i e 15 &)~ B R 1E
WO 2R - GRS
Z %)

o L PEE LIRS L I R Uk
BE ~ 7E A6 M KCTE NS R o Wl
D] BE 1Y) A B 3 A

LR /N N e S e (R i
JEE K AR

o HEFIANEEEE T4k T
15

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##F&@m&EEHRAR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#



RE -HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. SOCIAL - continued B. & &
2. Health and Safety — continued 2. REHEZZ2-&
There were no casualties and accidents over the o A R A T RS AR
Reporting Period, nor did the Group identify any 18] 7S i B e O A A T T
violations of laws and regulations in relation to IBH TP AT 355 i R % 22 2 1Y 9
workplace health and safety during the Reporting LA Z 1E B
Period.

Occupational Health & Safety Performance
BERERZERE

2018-2019 2017-2018
Item —E-N\F —E—+F
HHE ETE-hHF EZE-—N\EF
Work-related accidents

ST AR A B BB S . -

Injuries suffered by employees

BT . -

Sick leave due to work injury

PR A5 i 0 R - -

Work-related Fatalities

ST ARA B ST ik - .
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B. SOCIAL - continued

3.

Development and Training

We also offer employees with opportunities to develop
their knowledge and skills. The Group believes
training and development are essential for achieving
a distinctive competitive edge for the employees and
the Group. The Group encourages each employee to
develop their strength and opportunities through their
own training objectives. We also welcome employees
to attend seminars or exhibitions related to our
business or operations during office hours so that they

are well-equipped to perform their duties.

In addition, the Group supports internal and
external training programs accredited by Continuous
Professional Training for employees and accounts
executives licensed under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, which can help them earn qualifications
and acquire the latest industry knowledge. During
the Reporting Period, our employees cumulated 648
(2018: 618) training hours, as well as other seminars,
training courses and workshop sessions. In addition to
examination leave, employees are entitled to subsidies
for training or examination fees for the application of

licenses relevant to the Group’s business.

B. #t€2—&
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B. SOCIAL - continued

4.

Labour Standard

The Group’s labour standards primarily focus on
conformity with local labour laws and regulations.
We prohibit any child and forced labour in any of
our operations and production process. We have
established a strict protocol for hiring, of which
responsible persons conduct thorough verification of
candidate’s identification documents to ensure child

labour is not recruited.

We never force employees to work overtime, with
all overtime decisions being voluntary in nature.
We provide meal allowances to employees working

overtime.

The Human Resources Department ensures the
Group’s procedure and operations comply with the
laws and regulations below, including but not limited

to:

*  Employment Ordinance

*  Minimum Wage Ordinance

*  Sex Discrimination Ordinance

e  Disability Discrimination Ordinance

*  Family Status Discrimination Ordinance

*  Race Discrimination Ordinance

e Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
*  Occupational Safety & Health Ordinance

. Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

*  Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

The Group did not violate any relevant laws and
regulations regarding the prevention of child and

forced labour during the Reporting Period.

Supply Chain Management

Given the nature of our business in the financial
sector, we do not have significant suppliers within
our businesses and operations. The Group’s suppliers
include various computer systems and software
vendors, market information providers, legal advisers
and several other professional business service
providers. The selection of suppliers is based on
criteria such as price, reputation, track record of high
corporate standards, expertise, capacity creditability,

business stability and product/service quality.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

5.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBER AT o

Supply Chain Management — continued

Moving forward, we will continue to closely

collaborate with our suppliers to create shared value.

We will also continue to incorporate social and

environmental considerations into our procurement

practices and promote sustainability in our value

chain.

Product/Service Responsibility

(a)

Policies and Compliance

Since we are principally engaged in the financial
sector, the Group has adopted due and careful
considerations in the business activities and
are committed to comply with the rules and
regulations of various regulators in Hong Kong
such as Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission. The Group also strictly adheres to
the applicable laws and regulations relating to
product/services responsibility in Hong Kong,

including but not limited to:

o Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)

3 Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules

o Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules

. Securities and Futures (Client Securities)
Rules

* Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance

*  Drug Trafficking (Recovery of Proceeds)
Ordinance

. Organised and Serious Crimes Ordinance

e United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures)

Ordinance
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B. SOCIAL - continued

6. Product/Service Responsibility — continued

(a)

Policies and Compliance — continued

In order to ensure full compliance of the above
laws and regulations, the Group has established
a comprehensive structure of policies and
procedures and require operational departments
at all levels the proper implementation of the
control measures. The senior management is
responsible for overseeing day-to-day operations
of these departments and ensuring that the
internal control procedures are being followed.
In addition, we have published and circulated
written operational and procedural manuals
within the Group, which contain internal
guidelines and implementation plans to ensure

the following:

1. Conduct business in an orderly and efficient
manner

2. Comply with all applicable laws and
regulatory requirements

3. Maintain proper records and ensure the
reliability of financial information and other
information used within and published by
the Group

4. Prevent and detect potential fraud

5. Protect the assets of the clients and the

Group

We also place substantial emphasis on providing
quality service to our clients. The compliance
team is assigned to receive, record, handle and
report all complaints received from our clients. In
addition, we have established a complaint hotline
which is handled by the complaint officer. The
hotline number is printed on the statement of
accounts sent to the clients of GNS and GNFCL.
We maintain a complaints file to ensure a full
record and the appropriate actions are maintained
on the portfolio’s file. We reply to all complaints
within 24 hours, to which the compliance
manager will review and follow-up according to

pre-defined procedure.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

6. Product/Service Responsibility — continued

(b)

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

The Group places emphasis on protecting the
privacy of its clients in the collection, processing
and use of their personal data and is committed
to the compliance of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and other relevant codes of practice

issued by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal
Data.

The Group owes a contractual obligation of
confidentiality of its clients in terms of their
information as stated in the account’s opening
agreements, and therefore treats their transactions
records and personal information as private and
confidential. All of their information is subject to
disclosure requirements under the relevant laws,
rules and regulations (e.g. Listing Rules or SFO).
Additionally, clients retain the rights to review
and revise their data, as well as opt out from any

direct marketing activities.

Protection of Intellectual Property
The Group obtains proper licenses on software
and information that are used in various

operations.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, there were no
incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations concerning breaches of customer
privacy, loss of data, as well as the provision of

products/services.
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B. SOCIAL - continued

7. Anti-corruption

(a)

Policies and Procedures
Honesty, integrity and fair play are cornerstones

of the Group’s business.

The Group strongly encourages employees to
raise concerns and questions regarding ethics,
discrimination or harassment, and to report
suspected violations and other applicable laws,
regulations and policies. We believe early
identification and resolution of these issues
is critical to maintaining good relationships
with our clients, employees and stakeholders,
as well as the Group’s reputation. We do not
tolerate corruption and bribery, and we actively
combat corruption risks and loopholes. We have
established a whistle-blowing policy to provide
a robust mechanism which allows employees to
report any malpractice existing in the Group to

the audit committee under confidentiality.

During the Reporting Period, we organised a
seminar for employees on “Anti-Corruption and
Integrity” with the Independent Commission

Against Corruption of Hong Kong.

Money Laundering

In order to detect and prevent money laundering
and counter-terrorist financing activities, we
established various policies and procedures in
compliance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements. Our employees are required to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations and
the anti-money laundering guidelines we have

adopted.
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B. SOCIAL - continued
7. Anti-corruption — continued

(b) Money Laundering — continued
Our anti-money laundering and
counter-terrorism policies and procedures consist

of four main components:

1. Client Due Diligence
We have approached a third-party
professional vendor to maintain a name
search in the database system. This enables
us to screen each new client against current
terrorist and sanction designations, and
check whether the client is a Politically

Exposed Person;

2. Ongoing Monitoring
We regularly review documents, data and
information of our clients and monitor
our clients’ activities. This enables us to
identify those complex, large and unusual

transactions;

3. Suspicious Transaction Reporting
We have established a comprehensive
internal protocol regarding suspicious
activity. If such activity is detected, it shall
be reported to the compliance team at
once. Whenever the team holds reasonable
grounds to justify that the clients or
activities are indeed suspicious, we shall
then file suspicious activity reports to the
Joint Financial Intelligence Unit as soon as

possible; and

4. Record Keeping
We trace individual transactions through
ongoing data and information keeping. This
enables us to establish a financial profile
for any suspicious account or client. These

records are then kept for at least six years.
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. 8- &
7. Anti-corruption — continued 7. RES-&
(¢) Compliance (0 &R
During the Reporting Period, no legal cases WMEPAN > REFSHEE T
regarding corrupt practices were brought 7 5 K BB IS AT B A B Y
against the Group or its employees. Also, no RS o AL I JE i B
whistleblowing concerning criminal offences or A BT = JR AT BUAT A R Y
misconduct was reported. BLR o
8. Community Investment 8. EEME
The Group acknowledges that a sustainable business A B [ TR WY AT A %ﬁ%ﬁﬂy
is dependent on the stability and well-being of the PR LT AE A IR SRR A o
community where it operates. In addition, we regard I Ah > FAMHL o E A R A ']
improving the community well-being as an important B (A ) 2R AL - WA
way to fulfill our values. During the Reporting AL 2 B L TN % TG ) O 5K
Period, the Group participated in various types of J%ﬁ,%J_%kﬁlﬁrh :

public benefit activities and encouraged employees to

participate in these activities:

(1) Donations (1) fEz
¢ HKD10,000 to Tung Wah Group of o [ R EE = PE 48 710,000
Hospitals (January 2019) Wwon (“E—JUHFE—H)

Photo 7
L] 7

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Corporate Partnership Recognition

HHE = A
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B. SOCIAL - continued
8. Community Investment — continued

(2) Voluntary Services

B %j: = n‘ﬁ

8. HEHH-&
2) FLMRHF

. Keeping the shoreline clean is a part of our .

community commitment.

The Group’s

management team played an important role

in mobilizing staff and their family members

as volunteers to join this meaningful event.

The Group organized a coastal cleanup at
Stanley Main Beach in October 2018.

Photo 8
[ 8

Photo 9
L] 9

A coastal cleanup at Stanley Main Beach in

October 2018 (Photo 8 & 9)
—F
LAE (8 %9)
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. g —-&
8. Community Investment — continued 8. EENHEH-&
(2) Voluntary Services — continued () FTLRE— 4
. Collected used red packets for Greeners . By Rk SEATE Y [ R & (=]
Action's “Lai-See Packet Recycle & Reuse W K AT D | ] s A B o
Programme”. (March 2019) (ZEF—JLE=H)

Photo 10 Photo 11

f&l10 11

. Collected the second-hand books for World . B EHERE —F
Vision (July 2018) F(ZE—-NFELH)

Photo 12
[ 12

The Group cares the community by participating in various activities, we collected used red packets for Greeners Action
(Photo 10 ¢ 11) and donated second-hand books (Photo 12)
I B 37 28 2 A [ 1 7 Y BT AR B o AT 45 AR AT B [ R R £ (10 11) f 1508 — F & ([F12) -
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B. SOCIAL - continued B. & &
8. Community Investment — continued 8. EENHEH-&
(2) Voluntary Services — continued () FTLRE— 4
e Supported Heep Yunn School for the . SRR B R TAEE
Work Experience Placement Programme BEFE (T F— JVAE L
(September 2018) H)

Photo 13
J 13
Supported Heep Yunn School for the Work Experience
Placement Programme in September 2018
W ZFE— NI 15 15 8 B T E ' % 7
#
(3) Community Service Excellence (3) AT [ AR
The Group has been awarded the Caring /l\ﬂrlggé\(éﬁ—%ﬁhﬁt Ifgh &
Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council /ﬁ'l B[P AR B R AR o
of Social Service, recognizing its ongoing TQ:H/I S 8] R A B AT A
commitment to fulfilling its corporate social AL EAT ARG o F A IR
responsibilities for two consecutive years. We }}‘;ﬁlé{%‘ﬁ LRI E E A
were also awarded the Good Employer Charter T PR R N B A
by the Labour Department of Hong Kong for Jiti > WAE TAESG TR & AA -

adopting good people management practices and

cultivating them in our workplace.

BREWE o

cari ngcompanym *

Awarded by The Hong Kor

RS

600D EMPLOYER CHARTER
2018
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The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 8 April 2016. The principal activities of
the Group are engaged in the provision of financial services,
including securities dealing and broking, futures and options
broking, underwriting and placements, securities margin
financing and corporate finance services. Particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on page 93.

The Directors proposes to recommend, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 21 August 2019 (the “2019 AGM”), a final
dividend of HK4 cents per share to the shareholders on the

register of members on 3 September 2019.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements in this report and
the Company’s prospectus dated 24 March 2016, is set out
on page 200. This summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements in this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. There
is no movement in the share capital of the Company during the

year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the convertible bonds and share option scheme of the
Company (with details as respectively disclosed in notes 30 and
33 to the consolidated financial statements), no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares during the year or subsisted at the

end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages

96 to 98.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to sharcholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s

shares.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As of 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company

available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$2,092,254,000 (2018: HK$2,141,649,000) which
comprised share premium, other reserve, contributed surplus and

retained profits.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to

the date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie (Managing Director)
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman)

fg s
5 TR P 2 A RE Y R 5 4 B T
W RE32 o A2 A A4 S T o

B AR 84 15 SR

RS 25 T BT 08 B 08 5 T B 0 R 43
PS5 WA T W2 M 5E30 ] 33) S » A4
AR A B 1R 0 T SR A 4 S A T A
385 o Rl A 2 B AT I 2
4 W+ SO A ) R T ST A B
il A A 2 B AT I 0 2 M 4 60 B =

&
28 B TS 45 70 2l 52 0 A 7 4506 %
98 FL 2 S 25 BT 6 -

BERR
AR 2 7 Sl A0 2 SR S A A 28 R
A 454 B 5 9 4% -

A i 2k & 48

o E-AEZA=Z+—H s AN E AT
I3 R T IR 2 ot 5 49 £52,092,254,0009 I
(. F—/\4F 1 2,141,649,000% 7C) » &4
T8 1B 0y v 18 ~ LA R - B AR AR R B
T ]

25
BE_Z—-NFE=A=+—HIHEEKXH
EARWEHIEZ BN EHWE ¢

HITEE

KA e (EH AP
T 3 b S AR (PR ARG
HITES :
WLV S S ()
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DIRECTORS - continued

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen, Carmen
Mr. Cheung Chi Kong, Ronald
Mr. Chan Ka Kit

Each of the Directors will be subject to retirement and
re-election at annual general meeting in accordance with the

Articles.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A retiring

Director shall be eligible for e-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and Mr. Hung Sui
Kwan will retire as executive Directors by rotation at the 2019
AGM and they, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2019 AGM.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange:

Name of Director Details of changes

Mr. Shum Kin Wai,
Frankie

The monthly salary of Mr. Shum
was increased from HK$38,590
to HK$40,520 with effect from
January 2019.

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan The monthly salary of Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan was increased from
HK$55,130 to HK$57,890 with
effect from January 2019.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS - continued

Name of Director

Mr. Hung Hon Man

Ms. Ng Yau Kuen,
Carmen

Mr. Cheung Chi Kong,
Ronald

Mr. Chan Ka Kit

Details of changes

The monthly salary of Mr. Hung
Hon Man was increased from
HK$13,230 to HK$20,000 with
effect from January 2019.

The monthly director fee of Ms. Ng
was increased from HK$8,800 to
HK$9,500 with effect from January
2019. Ms. Ng was appointed as an
independent non-executive director
of KOALA Financial Group
Limited (stock code: 8226) on 12
April 2019.

The monthly director fee of
Mr. Cheung was increased from
HK$8,800 to HK$9,500 with effect
from January 2019.

The monthly director fee of
Mr. Chan was increased from
HK$8,800 to HK$9,500 with effect
from January 2019.

EXERNEH-&

E=p

=

PECEE
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BEFE

Ho-F—JLE—HE,
WEXEEZAHEH
13,230%5 7t I ¥ £20,000
T
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VU H = H R AT 2y 48 RE
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o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 11 to 14 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with
the Company. The appointment of each of the Directors is
for a period of three years and shall continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing

served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

1. Brokerage services and margin loan financing

Name of connected person

Executive Directors:
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate

Hung Sui Kwan and his associates

Non-executive Director:

Hung Hon Man and his associates

Directors of certain subsidiaries
of the Group:

Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate

Cheng Wai Ho and his associate

BEALHSR

BITES:
S oY &N} YN
SRS ] YN

FHTES !
S P EN i} YN

AEEETHELR
ZEE!

RS LEHE AL

LAty E ] YR

Save for disclosure in (2) below, the Directors, including

the independent non-executive Directors, were of the

opinion that the transactions listed above were on normal

commercial terms where all of the applicable percentage

ratios (other than the profits ratio) on an annual basis

calculated under the Listing Rules were less than 5% and

the annual consideration was less than HK$3 million. The

transactions were thus exempted from the reporting, annual

review, announcement and independent shareholders’

approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the

Listing Rules.

HEXS  FEBERS

1. BERBERAEZERME

Brokerage
commission
income paid

to the Group
for the year
EREFNF
AEEZ
REATEWA
HKS

T

13,769
5,405

2,883,930

8,507
40,913

Margin loan
interest paid
to the Group

for the year

EREFNF
rEEZ

RESENFE

HK$
BT

4,635

9,894,009

3,857
82

Maximum
amount of
margin loan
for the year
FRRES
ERZ
BEEEH
HKS$

T

1,311,583

227,807,489

736,202
227,697
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P SEMR K > T AR B T B 4 A
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

2.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Asia Smart Group Limited

On 30 August 2017, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”),
a subsidiary of the Company and Asia Smart Group Limited
(“Asia Smart”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Hung
Hon Man (a non-executive Director and the chairman
of the Board), entered into (i) the financing services
agreement (“Financing Services Agreement”, as amended
by supplemental agreement dated 12 September 2017),
pursuant to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon
request from Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Asia Smart and/or its
associates from time to time during the period from 20
November 2017 to 31 March 2020; and (ii) the broking
services agreement (“Broking Services Agreement”) pursuant
to which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon request from
Asia Smart and/or its associates, provide broking services
and services incidental thereto by GNS or any company
amongst the Group to Asia Smart and/or its associates
during the period from 30 August 2017 to 31 March
2020. Details of the terms and conditions of the Financing
Services Agreement and Broking Services Agreement can be
referred to the announcements dated 30 August 2017 and
12 September 2017 and circular dated 18 October 2017.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, (i) the interest
income earned from Asia Smart by GNS amounted to
HK$9,834,000 (with annual cap set at HK$18,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019);
amount of margin loan granted to Asia Smart amounted to
HK$227,688,000 (with annual cap set at HK$230,000,000
for the year ended 31 March 2019); and (iii) the brokerage

commission earned from Asia Smart by GNS amounted

(ii) the maximum

to approximately HK$2,857,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$8,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/

HEXS  FEBERS &

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

20

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Asia Smart Group Limited — continued

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the above transactions have been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on
normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be); and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them during the validity of the agreement periods on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions
pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and advised
the Board in writing (with a copy provided to the Stock
Exchange) that the above transactions, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that: (i)
have not been approved by the Board, (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of
goods or services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and (iv) have

exceeded the their respective annual caps.

22
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

3. Management fee and interest expense

During the year, the Group (i) received a management
fee from GN Holdings amounting to HK$2,520,000 for
office areas sharing; and (ii) paid an interest expense to GN
Holdings amounting to approximately HK$82,000 for loan
facility.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions were:

a. entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

b. conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

c. entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules which
are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions/
Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 74 to 77, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

— continued

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 1.

of the Company

EERBETBRARZROESRE

"R

Number of

issued ordinary

ANTEREEIIEBIZEERZ

Percentage
of the issued

share capital

Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company
FFE®T GARASHKT

EEnA Bt EBEREE BREZBDH

Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 50,309,829 2.01%

B EE 2 EE A ()

Note:  Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in it WEESCRR AN B RS EEHoneylink

50,309,829 ordinary shares of the Company which are
held by Honeylink Agents Limited (“Honeylink”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with

limited liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of 2.
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Agents Limited ([ Honeylink ) £ 2
A 150,309,829 % A A 2 HE 45 o
Honeylinkﬁﬁé%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁij
ZAWAT > HAE T 3T A Bt

BT A -

RAERAZEMBLRAAGHFESZAR
RA(HHFEE]) 2BREELET

ZERERELERZHFA

Percentage

of the issued

Number of non-voting

non-voting deferred share

deferred of GNS

Name of Director Capacity shares* held IHEE RS

FrisERERE CRTERER

EEnS EEME BEER#E EZERZBIL

Mr. Hung Hon Man Beneficial owner 36,000,000 90%
LA Ha i A

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie Beneficial owner 4,000,000 10%
RSt HadEA A

40,000,000 100%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
— continued

2. Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HK$1.0 each of Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company — continued

* The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to

dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

EEEHRE
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Ry Y S NI bz K4
e 5 e A I T 2 R SRR B A
B Bk 2 A A Uk o

3. AAREEERARGHFERSRE

of GN Holdings, the immediate holding company of the BB 2EBRZHR
Company
percentage
Number of the issued
of issued share capital of
ordinary  the GN holdings
Name of Director Capacity shares held HEFER
B8 BBITRA
ExpS MY EERHE ZED
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 2,898,049,874 29.99%
P SO 2 MR ()

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
2,898,049,874 ordinary shares of Get Nice Holdings
Limited which are held by Honeylink, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

FE - UL SCSEA W B A B Honeylink R
A2 P I IR 7]2,898,049,874
38 4 i 2 HE 2R © Honeylink 2 7% 52 &
LB S R M L 2 A RRA T > KA
WO AT A I E SRR B R A

B b SCRT B8R A R F — JLE = H
= H o MR L B R G128 352008
T AT 00 5 R T C Bk AR 4R A E ST B

[6] A 2% ) B W A58 P AR B R > AR S ]
$&Hi§ﬁ?ﬂlkﬁ$@€ﬁ%ﬁ$/\ﬂﬁ LT
] A Bt 12 B O 26 78 0 I ) R R 91 26XV
i) ZE@H&%@WHE%Hﬂﬁﬂ@&ﬁ%ﬁjw(
£ o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
AND OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme to subscribe
for shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company granted under the
share option scheme during the year are set out in note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no options were granted to any director of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had

exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company

were as follows:

BEROEBEREZZ

TR A A JEE R4 O IS HE 452 o 1) AR 2
JCHE (AT 982 L 0 S A > W) 4 JBC T (0.0 178 T
ZIBEHy) 2 RENE o TYHOR A T R TR MY R
g8 ¢

JAARAEE - S 488 ) AR % W HE S L B

B b SCHEER AN > TR AR AR TR T AR
) AT ] B Ja 2% ] Sl i 22 BRAT: ] 22 B
(E /AT = RIS S e
b 32 N TR 2 T AR O i A i o TR A
A > N B SE 2 C A B8R LA R
LA HE RS AR Y W] 22 B B E AT AT AT R
SEHEA -

FERR

R NEZHA =1+ —H o AL FME
T # B R S ATEANB TR > LR A8
(R R s = AT B B BRAM) A
O A BB B B B0 v A AR 2 B
PR VR EEA RC AR SRS I S B R 155336
W 2 B A% m) A B 2 B RO M (1 B 2 5%
RO ) SOZE & AR w2 IR

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##F&@m&EEHRAR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS - continued
Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the

Company

Name

=L

GN Holdings

REIF PRI

AVALON Global Fixed Income Fund LP
AVALON Global Fixed Income Fund LP
Jifu Financial Investment Company Limited
Jifu Financial Investment Company Limited
Maxwealth Investment Management Limited
Maxwealth Investment Management Limited
PAN SHANGCONG

i

Note:

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FERR-&

Number of

issued/underlying

ordinary

Capacity shares held
e #T/
BEME HEEERHE

Beneficial owner

A A

Beneficial owner (Note 1)
Hawa N (M)

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
mMZBEEREA (Wil

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
mZBEEREE (M)

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
mMZBEEREA (Wil

1,824,690,171

235,000,000

235,000,000

235,000,000

235,000,000

wit -

AATEREEIEBTZEERCER

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital (%)
BAERT
BETRE
ZBRE (%)

7255
9.40
9.40
9.40

9.40

1. Mr. Pan Shangcong, AVALON Global Fixed Income Fund LP,

Maxwealth Investment Management Limited and Jifu Financial

Investment Company Limited, were deemed to be interested in the

same parcel of these 235,000,000 underlying ordinary shares of the

Company by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

R4 3% 5 KM B e s W b SR

AVALON Global Fixed Income Fund LP,
Maxwealth Investment Management Limited
JJifu Financial Investment Company Limited
WA B B A A2 T () — S AH B A
1#+235,000,000 ¢ 1 HE £

AN E 2 W g RIRA -

PR b SCPrER &SN o R S LAEE = A
=+t—H0 > EFEIWAMBAEMALBGE
B (AR AHESE R REITEANBRSN) ®
A A e A B Bl JSe 4 o R A B 2 R
WO A RO AR R 15 6 RO T S
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed shares of the Company during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 10% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the public float as required by the
Listing Rules during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$20,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 15 to 36 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and is decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2019 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 10.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of

this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry,
the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital
expenditures and working capital requirements when changing
the strategic plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external

environments.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
— continued
Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institution. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan and monitoring
measures, including but not limited to implementation of cyber
security control and comprehensive cyber testing programme,
to protect the Group from risk of interruption to its business

continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the

exercise of their independent judgments during the year.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017 were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). Deloitte resigned as auditor of the
Group with effect from 23 March 2018 and Mazars CPA
Limited (“Mazars”) was appointed on 23 March 2018 as the new

auditor to fill the causal vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 were audited by Mazars whose term of

office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

HUNG HON MAN
CHAIRMAN

26 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MBEMAZARS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Get Nice Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 199,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LiMITED

H B SRR (B st W B B
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

FUSIE PSS 18 SR P BRI, 42

Tel 7Eifi: (852) 2909 5555

Fax f#2: (852) 2810 0032
Email FET: info@mazars.hk
Website #81ik: www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

HRERER

o) S A A% T TH T AR R AR A% MR 2 S A
B 5 2% A 0 ] A B S R 2 TR B
I B A o iE BRI T R A A% Bl A
AR R A SV R St I o L R LY R
B o A A% AN 6 0 0 R TR AR B

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on o

these matters.

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the

business of dealing in securities margin financing

EFRECHERBREELZERRECEFIRBERNCEER ([RACEER]) ZERER

Related disclosures are included in notes 2, 4, 6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEHBHEENT2 4> 6R22FTBZ IR 17 %

Key Audit Matters
BEEXER

At 31 March 2019, the accounts receivable from margin
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
amounted to HK$3,695 million, net of loss allowance for
ECL of HK$37 million. These represent 68% of the total
assets of the Group.

Management assessed the provision for ECL of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on various inputs
such as margin loan overdue information, loan-to-value
percentage, default rate provided by credit rating agency or
other relevant information together with forward-looking

analysis.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

AZE NS R ERETEIE
Our procedures, among others, included:

. considering the relevance and reasonableness of
key assumptions over the ECL assessment, and the
relevance and accuracy of the source data used in

the assessment;

e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the

measurement of the loss allowance;

. checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with

reference to closing market price;
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Key Audit Matters — continued

HRELEE-#

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the

business of dealing in securities margin financing

EFREETHERBREGELZERRECEFRBERACEER ([RACEER]) ZERREE

Related disclosures are included in notes 2, 4, 6 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEEBBEHEME2 4> 6R22FT 8 15615 E

Key Audit Matters
BREELER

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance and the significant
judgement in determining ECL on the account receivables

from margin clients.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

AEBMNESNMEERRETSEE

comparing, on a sample basis, the recoverable
amount of the securities collateral with the
accounts receivable from each individual margin
clients to determine whether there was any
shortfall; and

assessing the sufficiency of the loss allowance
recognised with respect to the above shortfall,
after taking into account other factors such
as credit worthiness, past collection history and

repayment subsequent to reporting period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2019 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

BrrAlEHH LM ERAR - HitERE
i BRAF - NUFFERTBER
e AN EL G 555 T B AR BE R r i A
G LIRS

R B B AR B R 2 L N T 2
FOAb A} - T AR A% R SIS A 1 % R AT AT

B2 %8 & o

WA B 55 MBS IR EZFLM S
AR 2 AT R B R > I AE B
WA > B RS H A BB R 7 BLAR 5 RS TR
R B AL WA B AR AR BT N B A
A R 1R 8 B F A T T o B O 5 R R
Al o A A B 2 AT 2 AR A
SR R 5 L EL At T o B R O R AL
R ZE ¥ 5 % 2 o AR A% BRI 7E B8 D7 T 0 28 #

4o

EEREEERAEHGSMBHRRZE
£

BRrERHAAREREEGE A
WM 2 A s B i Y ) % A T A WA A
2 W EE BLE n WE AT AR R
Fo WARHERZHOLEZAARE >
R fim B 2 A5 5 B 5 Sk 5% I Sl 90 A ] 2 %
W BB T i B 2 TR B R RO

T i B A B S R IR S H R ORET
i FEEFELE 2 A
P B A S A B 2 S I R AR
mEgsEE RIEEHAES BHEHE
T MR B Ak AL > B 4 A T R D7 SR
i Z 0 55 Al i o

g

eSS

il

,

ARERZANBHARESR
7,

&
MR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %%k ¢ GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#f £ mikE AR A &l

89



90

%8 3L 1% 25 B R &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

,
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a gOiI’lg concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obrtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated REMBERGREMBRR2EE &
Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with REARERZ ANBBRZETEY > A%
governance, we determine those matters that were of most S i 7 3B AN A T 4R S B S 3R 2 B i
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements PEBEZHIE > MR EREZEE-
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. A% B A A BB R e % S R
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and MRIEEESERE AT A A R E
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, TH > ol 7E i 5F W 2 0 > R & PR TE M A
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter AL BT 2 it HOE R R TS A T
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 15 R A8 BT A2 2 8 AR A o B A A Bk
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to BEANEAERE P EEZEIH -

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited FERR (FB) EHMEXRAERLA
Certified Public Accountants S ES

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019 His > —E—NFEANHZTNH

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this B A LA BT R S 2 AL E R

independent auditor’s report is:

Fung Shiu Hang B I E
Practising Certificate Number: P04793 MR - P04793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_ZT-NAF=A=+BHLFE

Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
ZE-AFE | ZEFN\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it & FET T# T
Revenue Wy 7 401,589 440,128
Other operating income A8 7 A 9 435 98
Other gains and losses, net oA i 5 % N 18 15 B 10 (38,297) 19,884
Amortisation and depreciation PG 18 (7,111) (7,054)
Commission expenses A 4 B 32 (9,460) (15,304)
Net impairment loss on accounts JFEE W R T 2 L e 4 v
receivable 6 (20,085) =
Staff costs ISR N 11 (18,911) (16,674)
Finance costs Rl B A 12 (97,031) (60,405)
Other expenses Ho Al B 52 (21,855) (20,481)
Profit before taxation HADE R 13 189,274 340,192
Income tax expense BiIE 15 (56,219) (63,260)
Profit for the year REFEEHR 133,055 276,932
Other comprehensive income (expense)  H fth 2 H W # (B %)
Items that will not be reclassified NEEH A FEH a2 HH
to profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of properties Wy = FAG LB 2,770 842
Deferred tax arising on revaluation Yy 2 B Ak AR 2 IR JE B TH
of properties (457) (140)
Total other comprehensive income AEEHMEEINSEEE
for the year 2,313 702
Total comprehensive income REEEHKNSETE
for the year 135,368 277,634
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: LTRALTEGEAEEREF
(BA) :
Owners of the Company ZY/NEIE DN 132,980 276,937
Non-controlling interests 42 BB 4 75 )
133,055 276,932
Total comprehensive income (expense) AT A+ FE(EZHE K &
attributable to: (BAXX) 4% :
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE: 2SN 135,293 277,639
Non-controlling interests I = RO HE 4 75 5)
135,368 277,634
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share BRER 17
Basic and diluted FEA T v 0.05 0.11
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZT—NF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2019

2019 2018
—E-AF | ZEF—\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i FET AR P
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepaid lease payments, property TE AT FH & 2K IE DA K
and equipment LEY & 18 112,073 115,547
Intangible assets I & 19 8,413 8,410
Other assets At & 21 3,297 6,821
Deferred tax assets I AT 5 TE &R 31 259 259
124,042 131,037
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JHE 1fz B TH 22 3,707,421 4,118,049
Prepayments, deposits and TAATEIE ~ s KX 23
other receivables At Wiz 2R T 2,927 4,092
Tax recoverable A i ] A 7,349 20
Investments in securities EARERE 24 170 158
Bank balances — client accounts WRATH R — B FIRF 25 1,143,120 419,637
Bank balances — general RATH G — —BIRF KB4 26
accounts and cash 422,942 236,356
5,283,929 4,778,312
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JRE At MR TH 27 1,196,203 482,464
Accrued charges and other payables JRE =t 2 R B At B A+ R IH 28 8,443 6,922
Tax payable JRE A5 Bt TH 164 6,762
Bank borrowings AT E 29 - 60,000
Liability component of convertible bonds ] # 5 5 2 & &5 500> 30 233,524 -
1,438,334 556,148
Net current assets RBEEFHE 3,845,595 4,222,164
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBAERE 3,969,637 4,353,201
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities R 4E B TE A AR 31 3,706 3,143
Liability component of convertible bonds ] # [ {5 3 2 & &35 7> 30 - 350,840
3,706 353,983
NET ASSETS BERE 3,965,931 3,999,218
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

rE MBI R
FINANCIAL POSITION

R-B-—NE=A=+—H
At 31 March 2019

2019 2018
—B-hE | _FNAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B SE FERT T T
Capital and reserves EXRFE

Share capital k&N 32 25,000 25,000
Reserves i 3,940,827 3,974,185

Equity attributable to owners ARBEEAEIEER
of the Company 3,965,827 3,999,185
Non-controlling interests FERES 104 3)3)
TOTAL EQUITY g 3,965,931 3,999,218

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 199 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
26 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shum Kin Wai Frankie
SEE

Director

#HH

FOIH R I99EZ A MBI EHER S
W E—IJUENH TS B R RET)
%o 0 MY ERERAKESE

Hung Sui Kwan
it B
Director

#HH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE_T—NWF=A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

Ateributable to equity holders of the Company

LYGEIIN
Propery Non-
Share Share  Concributed ~ Convertible  revaluation Other ~ Retained controlling
apil  premium surplus  bonds reserve reserve reserve profis To  ingerests Toul
ik %
R RBEE  RAEE  BARE  EMRE  ERRE  REEA HE FERED i
Nows ~ HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Mt Thr TEx Tt T TEx  TEx Tz T TEn TEx
(note i) (note i (note 30) (note i (note )
i O | 1 | A 3
AL apel 2017 REF-tFBA-A B0 0T 14651 I T Y 78T/ J Yo) Vi - 364y
Drofcfor the yer FEREH - - - - - 1 1] 6 76
Other comprehensive income LRI
Trems hat il norbe recaifed o proitor s R EH R EEHLEH
- Surplus on revaluation of properties HEERR - - - - 841 - - 84 - 841
- Defered tax arsing on revauacion of propertes ~ ~ WEB (R BIEHE - - - - (140) - - (140) - (140)
Total other comprehensive income R2EhELE - - - - 70 - - 70 - 70
Total comprehensive income for the year RER2ENELE - - - - 70 - M e () 276
Transactions with equity holders EREREAZRR
Contributions and distributions BERTIF
- Tsue ofcnveribe bonds ~BATHREE W - - - - - - -
- Dividends o owners -REAAZ kA 16 - (tmsm) - - - - - (s - (s
- (s ST - - - -
Changes in ownershp inteests #ikkary
- Non-controlling interess aising from ——FBAFERAL
incorporation of a subsidiary LHERER - - - - - - - - 38 38
Total transactions with equity holders RERRFALRALE - (112500 -6 - - - 100 3B 100157
Ac31 March 2018 R-2-NFZf=1-A B0 AT LAB6SI 2619 1516199 L7415 3999185 B 38
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Atributable o equity holders of the Company

HEREEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_Z-—hF=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 March 2019

FOAREARG
Convertible ~ Property Non-
Share Share  Contributed bonds  revaluation Other ~ Retained controlling
apil  premium  surplus teserve teserve teserve profits Tol  interests Toul
T8k 0%
Rx  REE REER  BRER EGEE  R4EBR  RER 5% FERER 1
Nows  HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000 ~ HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
GRS o 7 o T v 7 N v/ A - 7/ ¢ /R v B v/ N - 7 o
(note ) (notei)  (note30) (noteiii) (note iv)
(W) () (Wao) (W) (Wi
A1 April 2018 RZZ-\EMA-A W00 FSAT L4691 22619 15162 1993 L7AL 3099185 3 3998
Impact on inital application of HKFRS 9 HIER AT R B
CilkivA 2 2 - - - - - - (844) (844) 3 (844)
Asteaed 4471 BT LGS M 15 195 LB 383 B
Poftforthe e KRR - - - - - - B B B 5
Other comprehensive income Ef2EYE
Trems hat il nosbe ecaifed o profitor s FEEF AR EEH LB
~ Surplus on revaluation of properties -WEERERR - - - - 1770 - - 1770 - 1770
- Defered taxarsing on revaluaton of propercies ~ ~HJE N 7 I - - = = (#7) - - (1) - (47)
Total other comprehensive income LR - - - - 2313 - - 2313 - 2313
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERANRAE = = = = 2313 = 132,980 135,293 75 135,368
Transactions with equity holders HRREEALRS
Contributions and distributions BERTIF
- Dividends o owners v 16 - - - - - - (150000 (150,00 - (15000)
- Redemption of converdible bonds ~ [ A% 30 = = - (106,310 = = 88,499 (17,811) = (17,811)
- - - (106310 - - (61,501 (167,811) - (167810)
Changes in ownership interests HEEESRH
- Disposal of interests in 2 subsidiary -t E- B AR AT
without los of control A Ll - - = = = > § § (@) -
Total transactons wth equty holders EREREAZRAEE - - - (106310) 8 - 64 (678m) )  (1e7810)
At31 March 2019 RZZ-1EZA=1-8 5000 375407 146,951 106,309 7475 15993 1794750 3965827 104 3,965,931
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REREEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T—NF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

Notes:

(@)

(i)

(iid)

(iv)

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBEER AT o

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their
par value. Under the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to sharecholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

Contributed surplus represents residual arising from the
capitalisation of amount due to the ultimate holding company to

share capital of the Company on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies

adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve represents the capital contributions from equity
holders of Get Nice Incorporated (“GN Incorporated”) and
Steppington Holdings Limited (“Steppington”) now comprising
the Group before the completion of the group reorganisation prior

to the listing of the shares of the Company.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

e 073 i 1 B AR B AT AR 28 ) JBL 43 2 BT 45 3K
TR T3 R A o L i 2 2 % o AR B
S REE N FE (RAERT) > AR A 2 By i
i R T e R R AL e K A T A U Ao S
HE53 YR SR A BB M 22 BE S 2 YRAR
Ao FREH ORI B W SEF R AR 2 F
A -

HABIURE =T R4 M A\ H
AsF o A 2 IS % R SRR B8 FE A 4 AR 7 AR
B -

9 5 A b A AR A A 3 U 5 S 3 MR 2 B 4R
P2 B BUR YY) 36 st < AR TR R -

A £ A AR AR 2> R B b TR 52 K
EEMEAAARAAEMBEE T ZGet
Nice Incorporated ([ GN Incorporated |)
K Steppington Holdings LimitedZ i ¥
([ Steppington])
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HERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHEZ

= NE=HESE =

Year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
—E-nE| AR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FTHET T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REX®K
Profit before taxation BT i A1) 189,274 340,192
Adjustments for: R -
Amortisation and depreciation WESY K A 18 7,111 7,054
Werite off of property and equipment 1 E R E &L ] 15 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B R N 7 22 Wi g 39 (12) (20,000)
Impairment loss for ECL on JE Wi B TE 2 TE IS Bl 1 2
accounts receivable WAH 1R 6 20,085 -
Loss on redemptions of convertible bonds & [1] 1] # [ f& 75 2 s 48 30 38,867 =
Finance costs Bl & A 12 97,031 60,405
Interest income B I A (4,514) (1,387)
Fair value changes on investments BAEREZ A EEE)
in securities 10 22 35
Dividend income B Sl A 9 - 9)
Operating cash flows before movements in /2 %8 & 4 5 &) {ij 2
working capital R = 347,879 386,290
Changes in working capital: BEEEEE)
Other assets H A 3,524 (972)
Accounts receivable JRE AT B 3K 389,699 (1,117,502)
Prepayments, deposits and TS RIE - 42 5 J HoAtb
other receivables JHE Wiz K TR 1,165 (1,638)
Bank balances - client accounts WITH G —FFIRF (723,483) 229,533
Accounts payable JE A AR TH 713,739 (238,832)
Accrued charges and other payables JE w5t 2 P H At B A5) iR IE 1,096 (1,658)
Cash generated from (used in) operations — #&4& r 15 (Jir ) B 4 733,619 (744,779)
Interest income received EALEINSY PN 4,514 1,387
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BT v A A5 B (70,040) (72,592)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXBAE (FA)ERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 668,093 (815,984)
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HREHRERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

HE-T—NF=A=1+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2019

FLOWS

2019 2018
—E-NEF - \F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 51 FTHET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXHK
Purchase of property and equipment W B ) 3 N e 18 (882) (513)
Purchase of intangible assets i B Y 19 (3) =
Purchase of investment in securities EE B AR E (34) -
Net cash flows arising from disposal o B BB A W) 2 T B A A
of subsidiaries 59 — 19,281
Dividend received B i S 9 - 9
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REX% (FFR) A2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RRE (919) 18,777
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEXK
Interest on convertible bonds paid B AT AT R 2R 2 AR (7,732) (5,250)
Interest paid SN Ps (356) (2,696)
Dividends paid Eﬁﬂ;’i i 16 (150,000) (112,500)
Proceeds from bank borrowings Tﬂﬁwﬂ A 34 196,828 1,374,990
Repayment of bank borrowings f t§§17 34 (256,828) (1,314,990)
Loan from the ultimate holding company iz & & I /A <J B 34 180,000 500,000
Repayment of loan from ultimate i 18 B A A R B 3
holding company 34 (180,000) (500,000)
Issue of convertible bonds, BEAT O] R B A 30
net of issue costs FNFREE4T R 2 - 511,875
Redemption of convertible bonds W [m] T 460 A 5 75 30 (262,500) =
Capital injection from FEREE R 2 EE
non-controlling interests - 38
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEXK (FFR) AT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES FES (480,588) 451,467
Net increase (decrease) in cash HeRESEEEB
and cash equivalents I Ot 2) 186,586 (345,740)
Cash and cash equivalents at the HEHINRERRASEE
beginning of the reporting period 15 H 236,356 582,096
Cash and cash equivalents at the HEHREER
end of the reporting period, REEEHEAR:
represented by bank balances $RITHEER
_—general accounts and cash - —REEFRERES 422,942 236,356

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBEER AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Get Nice Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 August 2015 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Get Nice Holdings Limited
(“GN Holdings”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange. The
Company’s registered office is located at P.O. Box 10008,
Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-1001,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is located
at 10th Floor, Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKS$”), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,

unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2018 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to advance consideration, the date of the transaction
is the date on which an entity initially recognised the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from

the advance consideration.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments

The following terms are used in these consolidated financial

statements:

e FVPL: fair value through profit or loss.

o FVOCI: fair value through other comprehensive

income.

o Designated FVOCI: equity instruments measured at

FVOCI.

o Mandatory FVOCI: debt instruments measured at
FVOCI.

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. It introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, impairment for financial assets and

hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS

9, comparative information has not been restated and the

Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to financial

instruments that existed at 1 April 2018 (i.e. the date of

initial application), except as described below:

(@)

(c)

The following assessments are made on the basis of
facts and circumstances that existed at the date of

initial application:

(i) the determination of the business model within

which a financial asset is held;

(ii) the designation of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL or, in case of financial assets, at
Designated FVOCI; and

(iii) the de-designation of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL.

The above resulting classification shall be applied

retrospectively.

If, at the date of initial application, determining
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would require undue
cost or effort, a loss allowance is recognised at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses at
each reporting date until the financial instrument is
derecognised unless that financial instrument has low

credit risk at a reporting date.

For investments in equity instruments that were
measured at cost under HKAS 39, the instruments are

measured at fair value at the date of initial application.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued

Differences between the previous carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the current carrying amounts upon adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised directly in components of
equity at 1 April 2018 as summarised below:
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Retained profits

R &t 7
HK$°000
FET
At 1 April 2018 R=FB-N\FHA—H
Decrease, represented by recognition of WD > AR SN E H B
additional loss allowance (844)

Classification and measurement of financial assets and

financial liabilities

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no significant effect on the

classification and measurement of the Group’s financial

liabilities.

The following table reconciles the original measurement
categories and carrying amounts under HKAS 39 to the
new measurement categories and carrying amounts under
HKERS 9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets as at
1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 05

— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued

Classification and measurement of financial assets and

financial liabilities — continued

As at 1 April 2018

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

TESHBRR-#&

RAHFel RETEBTBEREE
Al—#&

BB AR EYE - i T A
—

=4

R-ZZE—-N\EWMAE—H

Measurement category and carrying

amount under HKFRS 9
BERBBREERHHR
BETHHEERREEE
Carrying Remeasurement
amount under on transition Amortised
Measurement category under HKAS 39 HKAS 39 to HKFRS 9 cost FVPL
gEadt BEHHK
ERI%39% BERER
R EAERET BHTH E95 BAAE
Mt 28R REE BN E BERE TABE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER THER THER
Financial assets at FVPL BARBIHARRZZ2EM
EE
Listed equity securities held FEREZ EiRA#E 5
for trading (note i) (PftzEi) 158 = = 158
Loans and receivables (note ii) R EWEIE (ki)
Accounts receivable JE AR TE 4,118,049 (844) 4,117,205 -
Deposits and other receivables e 4 B HC A e i 2R 2,620 = 2,620 =
Bank balances — client accounts RITER-FEFRF 419,637 = 419,637 -
Bank balances — general accounts and cash #4745 i
——fRRF LB 236,356 - 236,356 -
4,776,820 (844) 4,775,818 158
Notes: [t 5E -

(i)  The listed equity securities that were previously classified

as financial assets at FVPL amounted to approximately

HK$158,000 continue to be classified as financial assets at

FVPL because the investment is held for trading.

(ii) These items continue to be measured at amortised cost

because, at the date of initial application, the Group’s

business model is to hold these investments to collect the

contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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HE_Z

—NEZA=+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments — continued

Expected credit losses (“ECL”)
The ECL model under HKFRS 9 requires an entity
to account for ECL and changes in those ECL at each

reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Impairment based on ECL model on these
financial assets upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 was set out

below.

The following table reconciles the loss allowances under
HKAS 39 to the loss allowances under HKFRS 9 on 1 April
2018.

oA
JE W SR JE

Amortised cost

Accounts receivable

Loss allowances
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Loss allowances

under HKAS 39 Remeasurement under HKFRS 9
as at 31 on transition asat 1
March 2018 to HKFRS 9 April 2018
R=ZB-NF RZZB-N&F
=A=+-—H BEZ HNHA-—HRE
REEREE BBEUBERE THEUERE
R E395E 2 ZR|FE9E 2 R FEo5E 2
EBEEE EFFE EiERE
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THET
17,321 844 18,165

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces, among others, HKAS 18 and HKAS
11 which specified the revenue recognition arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services and the
accounting for construction contracts respectively. The
Standard establishes a comprehensive framework for
revenue recognition and certain costs from contracts with
customers within its scope. It also introduces a cohesive set
of disclosure requirements that would result in an entity
providing users of financial statements with comprehensive
information about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the

entity’s contracts with customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

— continued

The Group has elected to apply the cumulative effect
transition method and recognised the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
components of equity at 1 April 2018 (i.e. the date of initial
application), if any. Therefore, the comparative information
has not been restated for the effect of HKFRS 15.

In addition, the Group has applied HKFRS 15
retrospectively only to contracts that were not completed,
if any, at 1 April 2018 in accordance with the transitional

provisions therein.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no significant effect on the

recognition and measurement of the Group’s revenue.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for certain properties and financial instruments, which are
measured at revalued amounts or fair value, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Lhis choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of rotal comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise of conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interest even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or
others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property
revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset
against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the
same asset and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up to
the amount previously charged and thereafter to property

revaluation reserve.

BE-_ZT-NAF=A=+BHLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Property and equipment — continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment
over their estimated useful lives from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at

the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 28 years

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the term of
the lease, or 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years

Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are
classified as operating leases. The premiums are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
and are amortised over the remaining lease terms of land on

a straight-line basis to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Intangible assets

Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecoonition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Recognition and derecognition — continued

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

Classification and measurement — applicable from 1 April
2018

Financial assets (except for accounts receivable without a

significant financing component within HKFRS 15) are
initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such accounts receivable are initially measured at

their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) Mandatory FVOCI; (iii)
Designated FVOCI; or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the

change in the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — applicable from 1 April

2018 — continued

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
accounts receivable, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances — client accounts and bank balances —

general accounts and cash.
Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are
otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
Dividend or interest income is presented separately

from fair value gain or loss.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

2 EEQE—H&%—IE
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=B E A

Classification _and measurement — applicable from 1 April D RGFE—H - FE—NNFEH—H
2018 — continued B — A
2) Financial assets at FVPL — continued 2) A ARMEF AR &N ARG E
— 4
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: S A& PE BB RRE B AR
By H
(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it () RERTHEU I LIRS A 4
in the near term;
(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial i) JB & UFE 2 C kA &R

instruments that are managed together and for

which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern

HMEW—#0 > kA @7
2 WY A 400 i e R B e B 20 3

of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; By B A R R s Bl
or
(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee (iii) J& I IF 2 Al E IS AR A 2 5l

contract or not a designated and effective hedging

instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or

liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on

different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at

FVPL include investments in securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification _and _measurement — applicable before 1 April
2018

Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value

plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets.

Before 1 April 2018, the Group classified its financial assets
into one of the following categories:

1) Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held
for trading. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends or interest earned on the financial assets are
disclosed separately from the fair value gain or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are (i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not financial
guarantee contracts or not designated and effective
hedging instruments.

2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, bank balances — client
accounts and bank balances — general accounts and
cash are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are not held for trading. They are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, except where receivables are interest-free loans
and without any fixed repayment term or the effect
of discounting would be insignificant. In such case,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment loss.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition over the period to
maturity. Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in profit or loss.
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of

the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payables,
accrued charges and other payables, bank borrowings and
liability component of convertible bonds. All financial
liabilities, except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be

insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments

unless otherwise specified.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets
Avplicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on

financial assets that are measured at amortised cost,
Mandatory FVOCI, lease receivables, contract assets, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued to
which the impairment requirements apply in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures
a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month

1B(CIL,

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.

the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or
more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

rE MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Measurement of ECL — continued

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the

carrying amount of the financial instrument.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following

criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);

or

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In particular, the following information is taken into

account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating

(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

GET

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

i
(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.
As detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the financial instruments determined to have

low credit risk includes bank balances — general account.

Simplified approach of ECL

For accounts receivable other than margin clients, without
a significant financing component, the Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Group
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Applicable before 1 April 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at FVPL, are impaired. The impairment
loss of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such
impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods through
profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity

component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of the fair value of the
compound instruments over the amount initially recognised
as the liability component is recognised as the equity
component. Transactions costs that related to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of

the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Convertible bonds — continued

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expenses recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in a separate reserve until either the convertible

bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the amount
previously recognised in equity, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, are transferred to share capital and share

premium as consideration for the shares issued.

If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference
between the redemption consideration allocated to the
liability component and the net carrying amount of the
liability component is recognised in profit or loss while the
amount previously recognised in equity and the redemption
consideration allocated to the equity component are
recognised or transferred directly to accumulated profits or

losses.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For classification in the statement
of financial position, cash equivalents represent assets
similar in nature to cash and which are not restricted as to

use.
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n B BT 8 AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHBER-&

— continued
Revenue recognition

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income from
investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established.

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group
is as follows:

(a) Broking services
(b) Securities margin financing services
(c) Corporate finance services

Applicable from 1 April 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that
is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct
if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service
cither on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued
Revenue recognition — continued
Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria

is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset, and customer acceptance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 —

continued

Timing of revenue recognition — continued
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

e  Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income at a point in time on a trade date basis;

e Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income at a point in
time in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when relevant significant

act has been completed;

*  Proof of funds commission and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered;

*  Advisory fee income is recognised over time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered; and

. Management fee is recognised over time when the

relevant services have been rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the

performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

— continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Applicable from 1 April 2018 — continued

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the assets while
it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of

credit-impaired financial assets.

Applicable before 1 April 2018

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and

costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the

following bases:

Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income on a trade date basis;

Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreement or deal
mandate when relevant significant act has been

completed;

Advisory, proof of funds commission and clearing and
handling fee income are recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant services

have been rendered;

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
on a time proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the effective

interest rate applicable; and

Management fee is recognised when the relevant

services have been rendered.
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or

losses are also recognised directly in equity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its prepaid lease
payments, property and equipment, intangible assets and
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Impairment of non-financial assets — continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

As lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange for shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Share-based payment transactions — continued
Equity-settled share-based transactions — continued

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGHHRR-&

— continued

Related parties BEAL

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the BRI N - B AR A B 2 A B

Group. HHE > ERWNT

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is @@ fi—& NERFELLT R &4
related to the Group if that person: N BRCHC T Ry B A AR T A B

ot

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () AR E A 1 ) RE ol L [R] #E

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii)
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (iii)
the Group.
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) it —
following conditions applies: il
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the ()

same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

il HE 3
HAEEAEREERS K
) AL EEEMAR -

[ B B AF & DL AR AT A
I 7% B A 2 1 A B O

7% B B A AR ) % ] — 4R 1
ZEZ%Z Eﬂ%i’kﬂﬁ/&ﬂ

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) Hrr—[EEEA S — [ ERE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a Z BB ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ% (ﬁ%ﬁ\:
member of a group of which the other entity is a h—HER A HEE
member). J& 4E B W B A 7 2 W8 s F

gEBERIE -

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEREY AR —F=FHZ
party. BEAE -

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (iv) Hh—HERLE 2% =77
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ZHEBRE - MH —HEHE

Bk =07 Z Wg A w] o

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) w2 E YA SE [%]%Eﬁiz]f%
the benefit of employees of cither the Group or A B W 2 B 2 A B AR A
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is 1M 5% 2 B KA At &) 4IJ]Z'K
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are %IZIK%;E’&EZ ahE o R E
also related to the Group. Bl 2 1l 3= 75 2y B AS 4 A

H o

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) #% B 5 52 (a) BT ik B A
person identified in (a). 22 il =X 3 [ #E 4] o

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) (a) (i) B i ik 7l I % BT #8 A &

influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
holding company of the entity).

B 1o o PO (ST
7S IET 1 T IN P
At

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) 7] A< 4 4 it £ Z AT BN B

it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued
Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is
the board of directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—NE=ZA=+—RHALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE—

3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not

early adopted.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs

HKEFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to

HKASs 1 and 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

2019

2020

of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2020

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the
new/revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any

2015-2017 Cycle !
Leases !

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments '

1

Employee Benefits

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures '

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Definition of Material *

1

Definition of a Business >

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning

The effective date to be determined

material impact on the results of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including accounts
receivable by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which is
based on the Group’s historical information, recoverable
amount of securities collateral, past collection history of
borrowers, concentration risk of borrowers, the Group’s
actual loss experience, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of the financial assets at amortised cost. Details of the key
assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out

in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Tax provision and tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$26,380,000 (2018: HK$20,345,000)
due to the majority of the balances are subject to further
approval by the local tax authority. In addition, the
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary

differences will be available in the future.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS - continued
Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Revaluation of buildings

The Group’s buildings with carrying amount of
approximately HK$37,984,000 (2018: HK$35,844,000)
are stated at revalued amount based on the valuation carried
out by an independent professional valuer with reference
to recent market transaction prices at the end of reporting
period and/or market rental value for similar properties at
similar locations, adjusted for certain estimates of market

conditions.

In determining the fair value of the buildings, the valuer
has based on a method of valuation which involves, inter
alia, sales price of comparable properties in close proximity
adjusted for differences in key valuation attributes,
such as size and age. In relying on the valuation report,
management has exercised their judgement and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions as at the end of each reporting period.
Particulars of the buildings of the Group are set out in note

18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt when applicable,
liability component of convertible bonds as disclosed
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and reserves as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The
management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SE(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. E@MIH

Categories of financial instruments ZEEeMmTE
2019 2018
“E-hE | ZEF )\
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AR PN
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVPL A REF ARG
4 Rl E 170 158
Amortised cost 2 14 88 i A 5,274,880 -
Loans and receivables BRI B M U 2k B - 4,776,662
Financial liabilities A =R
Amortised cost i 4 B LA (1,438,170) (900,226)

Note:

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost/Loans and receivables
include accounts receivable, deposits and other rececivables
(excluding prepayments), bank balances — client accounts and

bank balances — general accounts and cash.

(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost include accounts
payable, accrued charges and other payables, bank borrowings

and convertible bonds.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments in securities, accounts receivable, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances, accounts payable, other
payables, bank borrowings and liability component of
convertible bonds. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes to the consolidated financial
statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to accounts receivable, bank balances and cash.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Group closely manages its exposure
arising from margin financing by allowing an appropriate

margin on the interest received and paid by the Group.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial

instruments are detailed in other section of this note.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong prime rate

arising from the Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

A 50 basis points increase or decrease on accounts receivable
is used while 5 basis points increase or decrease on bank
balances is used when reporting interest rate internally to
key management personnel. These represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of each reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest
rate had been 50 basis points higher/lower on accounts
receivable and 5 basis points higher/lower on bank balance,
the Group’s profit after taxation would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$15,606,000 (2018: 50 basis points
higher/lower on accounts receivable and bank borrowings
and 5 basis points higher/lower on bank balance, the profit
after taxation would increase/decrease by HK$17,119,000).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities which classified as
financial asset at FVPL. The directors of the Company
manage the exposure by closely monitoring the portfolio of
these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial
instruments will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the closing market prices

of the relevant listed equity securities.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBIEK-&

177 25 J g — 4

eV

A P R R ORI - SRAT A5 R R Bl
17T T 36§ B 45 L A1) 5 Jal B = A= 46 [ H i
Slfr 488 A1) 5 368 P BLSRE © SR 5 A5 4R P AE
e B 2 IR B S A 2 LS 22 T AR 4
WEE S BAREIELEREEMEE
A 22 JEL B o

45 ] T L 2 ¢ 2
B 7% AR B2 A SR A

B 5 Jis P IR R
AL B RAREE > EEKA
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BAMRZ B H o

l] 3 2 HEN BEAT M 3R 19 1 0 BE
5 o ol M WA i TR Y S O ffR 2 B ) 1
W SR AT A B R T SR 2 B A 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk — continued

Equity price risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared as the directors of

the Company consider the price risk is not significant.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of the
respective entities. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has

been presented on the currency risk.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit
risk without taking into account the value of any collateral

held or other credit enhancements.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and loan
facilities provided by the Group arises from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group exposes to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Impairment allowances are made for losses that are
expected at the end of the reporting period. Significant
changes in the economy or environment of a particular
industry segment could result in losses that are different
from those provided for at the end of the reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure
to credit risk. The Group’s internal credit risk grading

assessment compiled as the following categories:

ERMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &
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TR E 73t
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52 5y 365 J5 R BEJE AT BUAT o A 42 [ 42
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e MBI RIS A HEMEEZ
AR TH {EL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk — continued

Internal credit rating

RS &R

Performing

B#

Underperforming

J& #)1% DLR A

Not performing

RNIEA

Write-off

Description
it

The balances that have not had a
significant increase in credit risk and
12-month ECL will be recognised

A B &5 B 2 A5 B TR e 7 2 58 = 49
A e RE 1208 A 5 B 4E

The balances that have had a significant
increase in credit risk and for which
the lifecime ECL will be recognised

A B 45 i 2 A5 B TR B S 48 Sl 1
ife 50 22 ) T B e 4R

The balances that have objective
evidence of impairment and for
which the lifetime ECL will be

recognised

A B &5 Bt BRI (E 1R 1
fifE 8 A2 S TH IS Ak 1R

The balances that have evidence
indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the

Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery

A B 45 B B3 RS S R R
Jife T o IR R 8 T A 4 1R R
lf7 48 iz (] K IH 2 A S

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 3R

BE-_ZT-NAF=A=+BHLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

tRMITHEH-—&
MERMEEAERKE &

1 B B — A

ECL treatment

FHFEBRZEEL X

12-month
(Normal Credit Quality)
12fl H (EFEREER)

Lifetime
(Significant Increase in
Credit Risk)

A0 (O B Ja g B 18 )

Lifetime (Credit — impaired)

2 (B 5 HR(E)

Amount is written off

A5 RE T DAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients

The Group provides financing services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all these margin clients are subject to credit verification
procedures. The margin loans are secured by pledged
marketable securities and margin facilities are set to
ensure that certain proportion of the fair value of pledged
marketable securities of the individual margin clients is

higher than the corresponding outstanding loans.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 44% (2018:
44%) of the total loans to securities margin clients was due

from the Group’s ten largest securities margin clients.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the accounts receivable from margin clients
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, whether the financial asset is credit-impaired
and the amount of loss given default, the Group has taken
into account the credit quality of clients, the collateral
to account receivable balances ratio, amount of margin
shortfall of margin clients and pledged marketable securities
and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry, in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each
case. There was no change in the estimation techniques or

significant assumptions made during the year.

ERMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. ERMIT A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERAREEEEREEX &
— continued
Credit risk — continued 17 B g — A8
Accounts receivable from marein clients — continued JENG IR B & &7 HEIH — 48
The Group has established a margin client credit risk AL C IR S K P E 8RB
classification system and performs credit risk management BARS » WRBRBEREF 58 (G
based on margin client classification in one of three BN IS BFER T H— 8
categories of internal credit rating. The information about TEEREEM . N FE—JLE=H
the ECL for the accounts receivable from margin clients at =t —HZBRRE SR RENE
31 March 2019 is summarised below. W5 Sl R G R i F -
Gross carrying Loss
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance
BHEE
R AR 1S B R AR BREE AR E BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiER FERT
Performing JE#) 12-month 1210 A 3,647,664 17,702
Underperforming JE#)IE VLR AE  Lifetime 41 53,167 3,795
Not performing N KD Lifetime 41 31,732 15,914
3,732,563 37,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from marein clients — continued

At 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s accounts

receivable are margin loans with an aggregate outstanding

balance of approximately HK$37,108,000 which are not
fully secured. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk on these loans, with exposure spread over a
number of clients, and which are closely monitored by the
Group. The Group held collateral of listed equity securities
with a fair value of approximately HK$13,731,000 at the
end of the reporting period in respect of these loans. Loss
allowance of approximately HK$17,321,000 has been made
for the shortfall portion of those margin loans amounted
to approximately HK$23,377,000. No further impairment
allowance is considered necessary for the remaining margin
loans based on the Group’s evaluation of their collectability
after considering, among others, repayment subsequent to

the reporting period.

At 31 March 2019, the Group recognised loss allowance of
approximately HK$37,411,000 (2018: HK$17,321,000)
on its accounts receivable from margin clients. The
movement in the loss allowance for accounts receivable
from margin clients during the year is summarised below.
The comparative amounts represent the loss allowance for

impairment losses recognised under HKAS 39.

6. TRITH-&

MEERREEEEREEK-&

15 B b — 4

TG (R 75 & 5 HRIH — 48
ACE-NE=ZHA=+—H > A%£H
2 FE R TE S AR R R A R A S
37,108,000% 7T Z f& #& 4 B 3K - A B
BN 0 A T HE o A £ B I A
F % S B BT T B B 5 R AR R
B A BRI R A 2 4% P I f A
SRR U) B o AR R > AR
Btz 5 ERRAEZIEAS AR
B 7 913,731,000 ¢ 2 L T B A 3%
%> B eZ S5 RS & B AR 2 2 B ER
4y #923,377,0008 JC 1 W8 15 #5 4
17,321,000% JG  #R #8 A 45 B 88 % &
(G rp B0 455 ) i 2 100 1% 73 3K A 85 4% Bl
] 3K TE B B WAL o R A TR JH AR
PR 8 4 B A A — 20 W A -

R E-AEZA=Z+T—H KE
9] S R i PR AR &P IR JE Rk 1R
B 4937,411,000% 00 (—F — V4 ¢
17,321,000%5 J6) ° 4 A REY R 7B & &
FRRIE M B s By A an -
4 R A SR AR 4R A5 U & wh B I 253958
e w0 (B R 18 2 e PR AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from marein clients — continued

The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis
of ECL, is as follows:

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBIEK-&

1 B B — A

JEW AR % 5 7RI — 4

R E BB R EE > iR
Rk /R (L N

2019 2018
Z3-0E e S\
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
VG
FEFE 2HEHEEFE
Under Under
Under Not Under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39
Performing ~ performing ~ performing HKAS 39 Total Total

BAT EOERXE

REER REER A
EHER HEREED R
TEH 308  BoRMx  H30RAG

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000
TiEx TiErn Tian Tian Tan T
Ac the beginning of the reporting period,  FH 54 » W 24k
as previously reported - - - 17,321 17,321 17,321
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RABHH R EN
BIRNEE
- Derecognition of provision o IR =)
under HKAS 39 HE SR 395E 0 Bt - - - (17,320) (17,320) -
— Increase in allowance — R fEsEm 15,902 2,243 20 = 18,165 -
Loss allowance el 15,902 2,243 2 z 18,165 17,321
At the beginning of the reporting AR
period, as restated 15,902 2,43 20 = 18,165 17,321
Increase in allowance Bl 1,800 1,552 16,733 - 20,085 -
Amount written off R - = (839) - (839) -
At the end of the reporting period B A 17,702 3,795 15,914 - 37,411 17,321
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from marein clients — continued

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the

loss allowance during the year:

(i) Increase in loss given default rate due to the increase
in shortfall portion of margin loans which are not fully
secured amounted to approximately HK$34,553,000
(2018: HK$23,377,000); and

(i) Additional loss allowance of approximately
HK$15,838,000 as a result of difficulties on

repayment by accounts receivable from margin clients.
The Group has collecteral amounted to approximately
HKS$3,642,000 in respect of the credit-impaired accounts

receivable from margin clients.

Deposits with financial institutions

The credit risk on bank balances — general accounts and
cash is limited because majority of the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks
with good reputation. No loss allowance was recognised for

both years.

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash. As part of the measures to
safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.

ERMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

17 B B —
JEWIR % 5 5 7 SR IH — 4

PATF &5 ik A8 R T (B A9 21O 4 ) L B4
AL s 18 9% A 18

() HR W I 4 EE I IE A B HE
ZRRE A SR MR N &
34,553,000% o0 (= F — /U4 -
23,377,000 7T ) 2 fiF 75 & 4018
KR ETF; K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
according to the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. The difference between the “Total
undiscounted cash flows” column and the “Carrying
amount at the end of reporting period” column represents
the future contractual cash flows attributable to the
instrument which are not included in the carrying amount
of the financial liability on the consolidated statement of

financial position.

HE-T-NF=A=+—ALFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

TWMIA-&

MEEREEEERBE-&

1 B B — A
L) B 5 R T 5w B 9 7

N R A A T AR AR AR B R
R F R G WIR - T RIRIESE
il 5 8 R U B B 4 U B (R A [ T
RWEOREREZ B MAmE - TRE
B R AR S E - [RGB £
U B AR ] — 5 BT i R 2 AR T
B S Hr2E8H - REXAHTEE
MR G H Bl R - A BB R
B3l R A 2 Al R RO AR A B SR D
KZHRTEH -

Carrying
amount at
Repayable Total the end of
Repayable in less than Within undiscounted  the reporting
on demand 1 month 1 year 1-2 years cash flows petiod
AEEX  ZAMER AERRE  REEER
&E nikE 15/ 1 RE#E  ZKEE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

At31 March 2019 R-2-7F=R=1-H
Accounts payable FERTIRIE 1,046,563 149,665 - = 1,196,228 1,196,203
Accrued charges and other payables gy e N ATEV - 8,443 - - 8,443 8,443
Convertble bonds RES - - 264,688 - 264,688 233,524
1,046,563 158,108 264,688 - 1,469,359 1,438,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

ERMITHEH-&
MERMEEAERKE &

1 B B — A
B & 5 R F 5 g 9 76 — 4

Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Total the end of
Repayable less than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand Imonth  Within 1 year 1-2 years cash flows period
REEX  AREA KBRS RREREK
s Wi VR 1 R AH ba {1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T

At31 March 2018 RZF-NEZA=1—H
Accounts payable FEfi A 320,203 162,231 = = 482,494 482 464
Accrued charges and other payables M=t P R LA e 20 - 6,922 = = 6,922 6,922
Bank borrowings RIHEE - 60,034 = = 60,034 60,000
Convertible bonds EES - - 10,500 529,375 539,875 350,840
320,263 229,187 10,500 529,375 1,089,325 900,226

The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity
for its financial assets. The tables below have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of
the financial assets, including interests that will be earned
on those assets, except for those financial assets which are
not repayable on demand. The analysis is based on when
the Group anticipates that the cash flows will occur. The
difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows”
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting
period” column represents the possible future cash flows
attributable to the instrument which are not included
in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the

liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

TR R AR R e R E 2 T
WH- TRIRBEMEERWRGH
B DU (645 % 55 I R A
B) > st A EOR R 2 S RE E
BR AN o A7 B o B T 1 2k i A 42 ) T )
B 45 L B2 TS T B ) BT A B o [ OR
BB i B AR | — ) B s R
ZBRTEE ] 3 Z M 228 - (URA B
THBEMRREER SR E - AR
B 4 U B I T OA B A A R A A
PR DL 3R 2 R 1A (EL o Py 7 R B ' <
MR i LA R YR [
Wi Bk A BR < A EE 2 R B A
A T L ) < A B R ALY o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMTH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERAREEEEREEX &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued 15 B i — A
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued B & 5 R F g 5 7 — 48
Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Repayable Total the end of
Repayable less than between undiscounted  the reporting
on demand I month 1 to3 months Undated cash flows petiod
AR
AEEX  AMER  1BMEAR AERRE  REEER
L niEE g #AH REAE ZRAE

HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TER TR TER

At 31 March 2019 RZB-nF=R=1-H
Accounts receivable, net TR 3,696,429 12,334 = = 3,708,763 3,707,421
Bank balance-general accounts and cash RER-—REFRH2 354,930 57,719 10,323 = 422,972 422,942
Bank balance-client accounts ROGEH-EFRF 651,488 491,726 = = 1,143,214 1,143,120
Deposits and other receivables EAEN I I E ] 1,397 - - - 1,397 1,397
[nvestments in securities HHRE - - - 170 170 170
4,704,244 561,779 10,323 170 5,276,516 5,275,050
Carrying
amount at
Repayable in Repayable Total the end of
Repayable less than between undiscounted  the reporting
on demand Imonth 1 to3 months Undated cash flows period

AR

AEER  ARMMA 1EMAM AMRRE  RRESE
B WER R EHM ik k| b !
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tl T T T Tl T

At 31 March 2018 RZF-NEZA=T—H
Accounts receivable, net RIS 4,075,554 4,901 = = 4,119,455 4,118,049
Bank balance-general accounts and cash RiT-——RER B4 162,194 64,053 10,127 = 236,374 236,356
Bank balance-client accounts Ri&R-%FRF 151,238 208,515 - - 419,753 419,637
Deposits and other receivables 154 RA MR 2,620 - - - 2,620 2,620
[nvestments in securities BENE = - - 158 158 158

4,391,606 376,469 10,127 158 4,778,360 4,776,820
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—ZT - NF=A=+—"BLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured

at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these

financial statements on a recurring basis across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input

that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of

inputs are defined as follows:

J Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

GI‘OUp can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly;

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets

Listed equity securities

ER g

Fair value at 31 March

RZA=+-HZARE

2019
—E-0F
HK$000
TER

170

2018
ZE—)\E
HK$’000
T

158

6. EMITA-&
DRETE
PATR £ DA R H B HE % 0 fU(E T R BH
WERHARMEZEERAME  TIHEE
o S S ok YE U BB 1398 40 2 M A & P
REZ=MEHRES - EH A R(EF
BRI R RBE BRI EBER L
T K 5 A ROPR B 5y - A BRI
MAEMT
o WHUE(REER) - ALERFE
AT BAG 2 M R R R
{6 BT R ORACGH )
o E2E:HIUEEFEZIMEUN - E
FE B A R R K R B A A
AR
o H3E (REREMR) - EERAM
R AT B iy A R
(i) KL AEFRZ &l EE
Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs
EERIM R
DREER EX-1P8 ¢4
Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market
518 i SR 2 W

There were neither transfers between Level 1 and Level

2 fair value measurement nor transfers into and out of

Level 3 fair value measurement during years ended 31

March 2019 and 2018.

REE_F - NERZF—NF
ZA=t—HILEE > B1EREE
208 % e e 2 I g H
3N O o AE TR Sl M A S
& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(1)

(iii)

Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at

fair value

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial

instruments that are either:

*  offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

*  not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as the offsetting criteria are

not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement
made between the Group and Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and a broker,
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the money obligations receivable and payable with
HKSCC and a broker on the same settlement date and

the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable and payable with its
retail customers in the Group’s brokerage business (the
“brokerage clients”) that are due to be settled on the
same date with reference to the settlement method set
by the HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these

balances on a net basis.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %3k o

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. TRITH-&

AREFE-&E

(ii)

(iii)

i FF #248 L (H 7T 2 2l R
= A 1

A4 T A LT R R A R A S
FAL B A D B 2 5 R
&AL IR (A 5 A
HHA -

&l B B il A R

TR WA EAEEEA
AR R AT 22— RS I
i SR E O A TR 2 L%
Ve e Mg E Kama

o A ARG BB K UL R A
WHE 5 B

o EMEELERMEEERE
A S A0 A1 T Sz 90 A A 4
B MBS IR DL RS & -

AR5 A 4 ) B 7 o v R A A R
A ([FBEE ) RRELETH
PR B W ok - AL A
15 TR ) AT A B S A
BB AL A TR HE B 45 A RE ik
B EAT SKIA AT - i AL B A
BUFETTASHE -

AN 2 FWE AT LINEH
TPk > AL EEEA Gk PUAT HE
M AL EBLEH 2 TER
F(T8L% 5 ) RIF A28 &R
F1 JEE e Bz I A BRI > T L AR 4R
AR S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/
to HKSCC, a broker and the brokerage clients that are
not to be settled on the same date, financial collateral
including cash and securities received by the Group
and deposits placed with HKSCC and a broker do
not meet the criteria for offsetting in the consolidated
statement of financial position since the right of
set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable

following an event of default.

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
assets after

impairment

A

BEALR

BELE

HKS$'000

THx

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NEZF=1-A

BRIMERE R AEH
[y 1

Accounts receivable arising
from the business dealing in

securities and future contracts 3,805,075

6. $RITH-&
AREHE &

(iii) & [l B i il B 2 HE 5 — A

B R 4K 85 2 H OB A5 B &5 R
Gh > H A e R B RELAK B HE A T
TP B ) AR AR T R AT 0 B
% F A 45 B0 B i A s
HE RERREEFRE-&
PRI PR (B A 42 T BT WSO & K
AER) AP E AR MR AL 1%
& WA G R &S B R IR
TR 2 A

Gross amounts  Net amounts
of recognised ~ of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
set off in the in the
onsolidated  consoldated Related amount not set off the
o R consolidated statement of financial position
of financial of financial Financial Collateral
position position  instruments pledged ~ Net amount
REREHH
RRZEE RERBER
LERALR  RRESZ YERGRUBRRZ RS RBLE
ARAE SHEEFE  GRIE EERERY B
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$°000 HEK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEn TRn - -

(97,654) 3,707,421 (L059)  (3,687,644) 18,718
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITE-—&
Fair value measurements — continued AREFE-E
(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to (iii) & fl B B il B 1 2 A — A

offsetting — continued

(Gross amounts
of recognised ~ Net amounts
financial of financial

liabilities assets presented

Gross amounts  set off in the in the
of ecognised ~~ consolidated ~ consolidated Related amount not set off in the
financial statement statement consolidated statement of financial position
asses after of financial of financial Financial Collateral
impairment position position  instruments pledged  Netamount
e &
BER  RWREE RESEER TERGFRAHHR RS
CHR CCEIeR R Al k3
SHEEAR  ARAE SREEWE  SRIR CANERD i

HKSO0  HKSO0  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKS0  HKS000
T T T T T T

At31 March 2018 RZF-NEZA=t-H
Accounts receivable arising AR RAERA R EH
from the business dealing in (234 110
securities and future contracts 4,292,929 (174,880) 4,118,049 (1,009) (4,088,949) 28,091
Gross amounts ~ Net amounts
of recognised ~ of financial
financial assets liabilities
set off in the  presented in the
Gross amounts  consolidated  consolidated Related amount not set off in the
of recognised statement statement consolidated statement of financial position
financial ~ of financial  of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged ~ Net amount
RNESHE
RRREHEZ REQHER PERGRUBRRES
BER CERER  REEMZ g phil K
CHERAE  KELE CHBRRE  SRIR CHERERY FE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
TiEn Tin TR TR TR TiEn
At 31 March 2019 R=8-1E=A=t-H
Accounts payable arising RARMEEEAHER T
from the business of dealing EEZEMER
in securities and futures contracts (1,293,857) 97,654 (1,196,203) 1,059 - (1,195,144)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

6. TRITH-&

DAREFE-E

(iii) & [l B i il B 2 HE 5 — A

Grossamounts  Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets liabilities

setoffin the  presented in the

Grossamounts  consolidated ~ consolidated
of recognised statement statement
financial of financial of financial
liabilities position position
e R MR
HEMHZ  RERHR
EER  CHISR  NEREHZ
SHARSH KESE 2RARNE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T
At 31 March 2018 RZF-NEZA=+-H
Accounts payable arising ERRBERERAERY
from the business of dealing EEZEMRE
in securities and futures contracts (657,344) 174,880 (482,464)

Related amount not set off in the

consolidated statement of financial position

Financial Collageral

instruments pledged  Net amount
TERGRHBRAE T

s ba kR
SHIL CHARERY i
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§000
T T T
1,009 - (481499)

The amounts which have been offset against the
related recognised financial assets and financial
liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position are measured on the same basis as

the recognised financial assets and financial liabilities,

which is amortised cost.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &£ mEBEAER AT

=
B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

7. REVENUE 7. Wz
2019 2018
—E-hFE| F—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Revenue from contracts with customers BRE B R EXERF 155
within HKFRS 15 HEANZEFEN WS
Brokerage commission KA 4 37,288 66,896
Underwriting and placing commission 58 K e A < 5,509 26,671
Proof of funds commission & 4 AR 4 7,160 3,600
Other commission HAth A 4 33 257
Clearing and handling fee income H M TFEEBA 2,365 25205
Advisory fee income LR PN 2,089 1,360
Management fee GE@iE 2,520 2,541
Revenue from contracts with customers & F & &K 56,964 103,850
Interest revenue calculated using the effective L4 B 55 F B 25 71 H
interest method: ZFE Y ar :
— bank balances and time-deposits — S8R4T &5 B Mo W AE K 4,235 1,386
— other financial assets at amortised — PR AT R 2
costs HoAth 4 Bl & =
— accounts receivable — JEIIRTE 340,390 334,892
344,625 336,278
Total revenue U 2% 48 28 401,589 440,128
In addition to the information shown in segment W 73 A8 ¢ 55 T 7 EORL AL o T T B RS i
disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers EHERIS ISR ERNEF S H s
within HKFRS 15 is disaggregated as follows: REEANR
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z—NF=A=+—HLEE HK$°000
T
Timing of revenue recognition: W 7 AR 2 IF [T P -
At a point in time A B 2
Brokerage commission R i 37,288
Underwriting and placing commission 85 S B B A 4 5,509
Proof of funds commission E 4w AR 4 7,160
Other commission HoAth A 4 33
Clearing and handling fee income H R TFEEBA 2,365
52,355
Over time BE B
Advisory fee income R [ 2l A 2,089
Management fee GEgiE 2,520
4,609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into three operating
divisions, namely, broking, securities margin financing and
corporate finance. These divisions are the basis on which
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, reviews the operating results
and financial information. The principal activities of these

divisions are as follows:

Broking — Provision of stockbroking,
futures and options broking

and underwriting and

placements
Securities margin — Provision of securities margin
financing financing
Corporate finance —  Provision of corporate advisory
services

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources

between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain prepaid lease payments and property and
equipment, club memberships, certain other assets,
certain prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
certain bank balances, certain tax recoverable and

deferred tax assets.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than bank borrowings, certain accrued charges
and other payables, certain tax payable, deferred tax

liabilities and liability portion of convertible bonds.

e all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain amortisation and depreciation,
operating lease rentals, management fees and certain
other expenses incurred for strategic planning by the

Group.

Segment information about these divisions is presented

below.

TEHER

A £E [ B 43 R = A AR R o B
KA EHRREEME M LM
& 2 EA A E S G (M EH
B RIR ) 7 R AU IR E R
ZEHE o ZEAM L EEEBMT ¢

g - REHBREKL N
B K ) HE 5 A0 R B
DL B £, 8 B i B

B REE — ROFFREEM
il & &

EmE  — R SR RS

REB O W0 2 & RhBUR BLAR G B R
WY RE2 BT 2 2 A 4K B & GHBORAAIR 2
B 22 AR R B K o3 H ] 2 E YR ) B

o BRESMEAHEREL LY E
e~ & P g AL - wR A KA E
FE B AR TE A KA 4 K H A
JE WK IE Ry SR AT A5 BR - B
T i [ T % A A B E AL
P ¥ B0 B 2 KL AR

o BRERATI AL WSO HE A2 P R
o B 3 0 £ O O
HEBLIFL B 15 3 T 0 2 2 20
TV E Y SO R
4 -

o BRUERGHEST KT - REMHEM
G B - AR B E A K
HLAS 4R ] 2 R A 3 BT Bk A 2
3 Ho At BE 351 > B A s 1 20 18
B4l ERE I ES o

BLAEER 1 2 70 BB Bk E BB R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DHER-—&
Segment revenue and results DU = B KB
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PAF % 3575 T il R R84 o i iR it 2
results by reportable and operating segments. A 45 B i g S SE BRI 43 T
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_Z-—-NF=A=+t—HLFE
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
FH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
THER FTHET TAERT TAER
Segment revenue 0 U i 59,157 340,343 2,089 401,589
Segment result o ER AR 17,718 320,257 1,518 339,493
Unallocated corporate expenses Ry He A% F (53,462)
Unallocated finance costs 3 i Bl R (96,757)
Profit before taxation b i Vs A 189,274
Year ended 31 March 2018 HBE_ZFZ—NE=A=+—HILEE
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
w5
B RELEE /G =h
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T SR T T T
Segment revenue L 103,925 334,806 1,397 440,128
Segment result GARE 71,596 334,806 1,369 407,771
Unallocated corporate expenses KAOEAESEH (8,485)
Unallocated finance costs 3 i Bl RA (59,094)
Profit before taxation i T %5 A 340,192
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. ZEBEFR &
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and PAR /% 3570 T il R R88 Wik ft 2
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. A 52 M E K BRI A A
At 31 March 2019 R=F-hF=A=+—H
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
&
Rie REEGWE LEXBE o)

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TERT TR FTERT TERT

Segment assets o B 538,300 4,732,833 9,732 5,280,865
Unallocated assets Ko & & 127,106
Consolidated assets OB E 5,407,971
Segment liabilities 7 i LR 159,828 1,041,015 146 1,200,989
Unallocated liabilities v =K 241,051
Consolidated liabilities HAAME 1,442,040
At 31 March 2018 MW _FE—/NFE=H=1—H
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Consolidated
e
Ka RESME 1> R E e

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T#E T

Segment assets 1 B 376,330 4,371,825 8,566 4,756,721
Unallocated assets Rl & E 152,628
Consolidated assets A ERE 4,909,349
Segment liabilities o LR 179,064 315,238 — 494,302
Unallocated liabilities KA A & 415,829
Consolidated liabilities LAARE 910,131
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BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. IHER-&
Other segment information Hithn EHER
2019 —E-NF
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance  Unallocated Consolidated
&5
e HRESRE rERE ROE o)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TERT THERT THERT THET

Amounts included in the 7l & 2 # it 1 5%

measure of segment NHEEFAZ

profit or segment assets: P
Additions of property VEYNE U AN

and equipment 879 - = 3 882
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8 {7 Fil & 7 H 2

payment, and depreciation  #E§ St 41 3£ [t

of property and equipment w2 #7185 (1,220) - 1) (5,890) (7,111)
Fair value losses on HHEREZARE

investments in securities iaRis| (22) - - - (22)
Gain on disposal of HEREL A

a subsidiary g - = = 12 12
Interest income FLBMA (B

(including revenue and W g S HoAte

other operating income) PN 4,498 340,343 63 - 344,904
Impairment loss on JE i B IE 2

accounts receivable Wl (E A 15 - (20,085) — - (20,085)
Loss on redemption B ] T 4 A 2

of convertible bonds g = - - (38,867) (38,867)
Finance costs g AR (274) - - (96,757) (97,031)
Commission expenses A3 (8,851) = (609) - (9,460)
Werite off of property G EN L]

and equipment (15) - - - (15)
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Other segment information — continued

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

8. ZEBEFR &
Hfth 5 385 —

2018 AN 2
Securities
margin Corporate
Broking financing finance Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BE i PEME Ao B BE
HK$’ 000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T Tt Tt

Amounts included in FHE 2 Hh e Al 2

the measure of segment NEEFALZ

profit or segment assets: WH
Additions of property VEVE L PN

and equipment 513 = = = 513
Amortisation of prepaid BT ERIEZ

lease payment, and i 3EVEEIN

depreciation of B Py

property and equipment (1,109) - - (5,945) (7,054)
Fair value losses on HHEREZARME

investments in securities [ZEic! (35) - = = (35)
Gain on disposal k) YA

of subsidiaries g 20,000 — = = 20,000
Interest income AR (45

(including revenue and e 45 B HoAth

other operating income)  EHEILA) 1,436 334,806 37 - 336,279
Finance costs Al A (1,311) = - (59,094) (60,405)
Commission expenses kA B (15,304) = = = (15,304)
Geographical information h @ & ¥

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, the Group’s revenue from external customers
and all non-current assets (excluding financial assets and

deferred tax assets) are located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, there

were no customers contributing 10% or more of the

Group’s total revenue.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBEER AT o

AL B AW o B A%
B B AN R F 2 s K A IR B
EE (N emEE LRERIEE
) B LR s o

ERFEEFZEH

REE _F-NFER T NE=H
=t—HILFE WEEFEH AL
B 48 £210%8% DL b 22 B R -
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BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. HE&EE WA
2019 2018
—E-hF e SN2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 279 1
Dividend income B Bl A - 9
Sundry income HAth gk A 156 88
435 98
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Hft Wz R 518
2019 2018
—E—-hE B
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
i 2 Fax T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B A 7] 2 IR R 39 12 20,000
Net realised gains (losses) AT G 2
on error trades Bl (E48) 548 36 (61)
Fair value changes on BEEE 2N (E )
investments in securities (22) (35)
Net exchange gains BEE . Wi i 3% A 544 -
Loss on redemption B YL i
of convertible bonds 30 (38,867) =
Others HAth - (20)
(38,297) 19,884
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

11. STAFF COSTS 11. ET A
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE— )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TH#s T
Staff costs including directors’ BITHEA (BIEEFME)
emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits 4 T HAth 4 A 18,200 16,042
Retirement benefit scheme ER UV IR
contributions 711 632
18,911 16,674
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. A& B A
2019 2018
—B-hE | SFNE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
R 3 FExT T 5T
Interest on bank borrowings SRATfEE 2 A & 127 1,165
Interest on clients’ accounts KERF Z & 147 146
Interest on convertible bonds Al S IR 2 FLE 30 96,675 57,709
Interest on loan from the B B RS T 2 B R B
ultimate holding company 82 1,385
97,031 60,405
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. Bt Al iz Al
This is stated after charging: e MR T5&E :
2019 2018
—E-NF —FE-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5 FET T 0
Auditor’s remuneration % B Rl ) 4 1,400 1,375
Write off of property and equipment il 549 & J% 5% ffi 6 15 -
Operating lease rentals in HEYEZ BEHATH 4
respect of premises 1,235 1,172
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six

(2018: seven) directors were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2019

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

14. EERITHARREEHNE

(a)

ESRTRARMS

EfTEEMAZ (ZF—NE: L
#Z)ERSHZMEWT

BE-_ZE—-—hE=HA=+—H1t
EE

Executive
Director
and Chief Non-
Executive  executive  Executive
Officer ~ Director ~ Director  Independent Non-executive Directors
UTEER
THBE FUNEE YES BukunEs
Mr. Shum Ms.Ng M. Cheung
Mr.Hung  Mr.Hung  KinWai, Mr Chan YauKuen,  ChiKing,
Sui Kwan ~ Hon Man Frankie Ka Kit Carmen Ronald Total
ARBEE MENEE SRERE RFARE RUExt RIIRE ag
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
T Tz TéEr TEx Tz TER  TEx
Fees ik - - - 108 108 108 3%
Other emoluments: Hma -
Salaries and other benefits (note i) o TR (k) 670 - 469 - - - 1,139
Performance and discretionary I RMICAL (B i)
bonus (note iii) 82 - 58 - - - 140
Contributions to retirement RO {5
benefit schemes 18 - 26 - - - 44
Commission i 575 - 57 - - - 632
Total emoluments S 1,345 = 610 108 108 108 2,279
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BE—ZT - NF=A=+—"BLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Year ended 31 March 2018

14. EERTHRARKEEMN =

— &

() EERITHARHNES -&

BE_F-NE=H=+—HI
FEE

Executive
Director
and Chief Non-
Executive exequtive
Officr ~ Director ~ Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
UhEER
THAR  FAGES AL BianEs
Mr. Shum Mr. Cheung
MrHug  MrHung  KinWa,  McKam  MeChn  MsNeYw  ChiKing
SuiKwan ~ Hon Man Frankie  Leung Ming KaKit  Kuen, Carmen Ronald Toul
bkt O ARREE  UROEE  RRBEE  ROREt REIRE 4%
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS'000
T Thr  Thr  T#x T Thr  Téx T
(note i)
(Fti
Fees ik - - - - 9% 9 9 m
Other emoluments: LM :
Salaries and other benefits (note i) 4 RAMER Mh) 03 - 45 - - - = 1,080
Performance and discretionary KRR (Wt
bonus (note iii) 79 - 5 - - - - 134
Contributions to rerirement RIRAG A
benefit schemes 18 - P - - - - 4
Commission 4 26 - 108 = - - = 334
Total emoluments EES 958 - 033 - % 93 % 1,870
Notes: !
(i) The balances shown above for executive directors, (i) EFIHEBESMITES (B4

(ii)

(iid)

Mr.

namely Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and Mr. Hung Sui
Kwan, were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Mr. Kam Leung Ming resigned as a director of the
Company on 28 April 2017.

Performance and discretionary bonus is determined
with regard to the Group’s performance, the
individual’s performance and comparable market
statistics.

Hung Sui Kwan’s emoluments disclosed above

include those for services rendered by him as an
executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBEER AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

Employees’ remuneration

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included one (2018: one) director of the Company.

The emoluments of the remaining four (2018: four)

highest paid individuals are set out as follows:

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

14. EERITHARREEHNE

— i

(a)

(b)

EERTHRAZME &

N7 408 ¥ 2 B AT B AR Ok 5 ER]
BEBE-F-AEX_F N
= = — Bk A AT AT 38
T WA BE T NAF
- NE=ZA=+—HIL4F
JE > A 45 B Sl AR 1) A ] S 2 S A
P < > AF 2% 15 o B A A T 2
& BB AE & > B J B A 0

éo

BEME

A 45 T A A v R N P —
B (ZF— N5 —1if) BAAH
EH o

HERW AL (ZF — N4 A7)
A E N L2 eI

2019 2018

—E-NF TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T oo

Salaries and other emoluments 4 T Ho At 4 3,273 5,637
Contribution to retirement FERNN R IR

benefits schemes 54 36

3,327 5,673

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %3k o

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€m&EEER A A

165



166

n A B 0 R R B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(b) Employees’ remuneration — continued

The emoluments of the individuals are within the

following bands:

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001% JC £
1,000,000%5 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T &
1,500,000%5 7
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 JC &
2,000,000%5 JG

14. EERTHRARKEEMN =

— i

b EEME-&
S5 2 M A7 DL HEE

Number of employees
BEAE
2019 2018
—E-hE —FE— )E

There was no arrangement under which the five
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

37 48 A7 e e A RN il B B
FERERE T NLER_F
— /)4 =H=+—H IEFEEAM
B 4 2 2 HE - BLAbh > A 45 [ 3l 4
SR VAS = 1! /N w2
o ERMEMEAELER L FE
ERARRAE & - sifE A B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. TAXATION

The two-tiered profits tax rates regime have been
implemented from 1 April 2018, under which, the profit
tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will be taxed at
8.25%, and assessable profits arising from Hong Kong
above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the rate
of 16.5%. As only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is
eligible to elect the two-tiered profits tax rates, profits of
the remaining subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Hong Kong Profits
Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. For the year ended 31 March 2018, Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the Group’s estimated assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

15. B8

PG BB R AR ) Bl & — /4R
A—HBEET Bt S EKREHER
A A2 9 42,000,000 7T JE SR B TR
FiI 51 LA 8.25% B Bt R AL AR A A5 Bt - T ARE
W A A2 192,000,000% 5T B _E A6 HE B
Tt Vi ) 7 A 285 A 16.5% O Bl SRR  F
A AR A 5 — [ B A R AT A R
) 15 A Bl 2R 9 4 Al 2 A o A A H
5 B 2 71 22 Ve A 14 A A D 16,59 114 1]
— Bl REBL

BE_E—NGE=A=T—HAIF
P 5 7 i 45 4 L 15 4 2 7 4
MAE - BE_F - AE=H=F—
I Lk i - 7 v 9 452 A B L A
ﬁgmﬁa%ﬁmﬁﬂuM5%mm$

2019 2018
ZE-RFE | E-NE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT T T
Current tax B HA B 18
Hong Kong Profits Tax RV IEE ) 56,277 63,649
Over provision in prior years DA R 4F Ji 68 AF A (164) (389)
56,113 63,260
Deferred tax iR SE TR
Origination and reversal of temporary T 7 2= LY 2 A T 48 ol
differences 106 =
Income tax expense JIT A5 F5 B S 56,219 63,260
Reconciliation of income tax expense BB 2HER
2019 2018
—EB-hF| EN\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T#C
Profit before taxation A %S A 189,274 340,192
Income tax at applicable tax rate & B ARG E 2 s s 31,065 56,132
Tax effect of income not taxable N BE R B A 2 B 5
for tax purpose (747) (3,218)
Tax effect of expenses not AN AL ST 2 BB
deductible for tax purpose 25,971 9,752
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised o e R B TH s 1R 2 B 5 B 996 772
Over provision in prior years DA 4 B R 1 A (164) (389)
Others HoAt (902) 211
Income tax expense for the year A A BE F A5 B B 3 56,219 63,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

16. DIVIDENDS 16. IS
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE—)\F
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FERT TH# T
Final dividend for prior financial year, BT > BB E 2 RIS
paid — HK3 cents — B3 (. — N4
(2018: HK2 cents) per share 2411l 75,000 50,000
Interim dividend for current financial year, — B A} » 7 B BUAFE BE 2 p A B
paid — HK3 cents — B3 (—F — N4
(2018: HK2.5 cents) per share 2.5% Al 75,000 62,500
150,000 112,500

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2019 of HK4 cents (2018: HK3 cents) per share,
amounting to approximately HK$100,000,000 (2018:
HK$75,000,000) has been proposed by the directors of the
Company and is subject to the approval by the owners of

the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##F&@&EEHERAR ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2019 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

17. 8RB F

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share TR IR A 23 ) JI HE e A N B A v 1) B2 4R
is based on profit attributable to the equity holders of the 48 B HE S 1 i A 2 g R
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary AREEH AN ZFEANTWT

shares in issue during the year as follows:

Earnings s &l
2019 2018
ZE-RFE | CFNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T#T
Earnings for the purpose of basic FR R R A B 4
and diluted earnings per share B Z AN B A N A
Profit for the year attributable to 4 1A Y )
equity shareholders of the Company 132,980 276,937
Number of shares BB B
2019 2018
—E-hE e SN2
’000 ’000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary R =B R RS I 4 v
shares, for the purpose of basic and B Z ST 24 3% 5 B H
diluted earnings per share 2,500,000 2,500,000
As the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds had FH A 7S 2 ) oA B [l AT 4 i R 05 R
an anti-dilutive effect to the basic earnings per share T E-NERE-NE=ZHA=+—
calculation, the computation of diluted earnings per H k4 B IR A A 2wt 3B H i
share for both years did not assume the exercise of certain WA,y T NFENR FE—N
convertible bonds since their assumed exercise would result F=H =4 — Bk R R AR

in increase in earnings per share.

2wt B Sl AR R S 0 T R A O AT
> JE PR R A I BE AT 1 S B i
&R0 -
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND 18. BEREEREBEURIERRE
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Prepaid lease
payments Property and equipment
BfAgRE NERZE
Motor
Leaschold Leasehold vehicles Office Furniture
land Buildings improvements andyacht  equipment  and fixtures Total

BELH BF BEMRKE NEREE HOERE RARKE aF
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T T T T T T

Cost ot Valuation RAZMGE

Ac 1 April 2017 REF—-tEMA—A 103,780 35,630 10,032 30,658 19,536 1,444 201,080
Additions RE 5 - 286 - 24 13 513
Adjustment on revaluation B = 214 = = = = 214
Disposal of subsidiaries HERE AT = = (1,880) = (7,290) (757) (9,927)
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-NE=A=+—H 103,780 35,844 8,438 30,658 12,460 700 191,880
Comprising: i

At cost A 103,780 = 8,438 30,658 12,460 700 156,036
At valuation Hefh = 35,844 B - = = 35,844
At April 2018 REZ—M\EMA—H 103,780 35,844 8,438 30,658 12,460 700 191,880
Additions RE - - 307 - 537 38 882
Adjustment on revaluation e = 2,140 = = = = 2,140
Disposal ik - - - = (250) = (250)
Write off i - - (926) (536) (2,984) (151) (4,597)
At31 March 2019 REZ-AFZA=1—H 103,780 37,984 7819 30,122 9,763 87 190,055
Comprising: ol

At cost A 103,780 = 7,819 30,122 9,763 587 152,071
At valuation hE - 37,984 = - = = 37,984
At 31 March 2019 REZ-NEZA=1—H 103,780 37,984 7819 30,122 9,763 87 190,055
Accumulated amortisation/depreciation  Z 3T % /1T E

Ac T April 2017 RZF—tENA-A 29,600 - 9,919 20,925 17999 1,391 79,834
Charges B 2,450 628 167 3,16 575 18 7,054
Eliminated on revaluation BIRERS - (628) = = - - (628)
Disposal of subsidiaries R B A - - (1,880) - (7,290) (757) (9,927)
At 31 March 2018 REZ-NEZH=+—H 32,050 = 8,206 24,141 11,284 652 76,333
Charges B 241 630 28 3,113 466 3 7,111
Eliminated on revaluation B LR = (630) = = = = (630)
Disposal ik - - - - (250) = (250)
Wiite off o - - (926) (536) (2,969) (151) (4,582)
At 31 March 2019 REZE-AEZA=+—H 34,501 = 7,508 26,718 8,731 524 77,982
Net carrying values RAE

At 31 March 2019 REE-NE=f=1-H 69,279 37,984 311 3,404 1,032 6 112,073
At 31 March 2018 REZZ-NEZA=+—H 71,730 35,844 232 6,517 1,176 48 115,547
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

The buildings of the Group were valued at 31 March 2019
and 2018 by Messrs. RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”) on
an open market value basis. RHL is not connected with
the Group, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the

relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest and

best use of buildings is the current use.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurement. The management of the Group would first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management of
the Group would adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

rE MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I ANBEERBUARMER R

&

A G B 2 AR T T Rk A AT W R A
PR (TRFAT ) B =& — U K —
T NE=ZA=+—HEAMHHZE
HEAEAT A (B o A A AT 2 BELAS 4R ) 3If7
B > B A E A X R A B
o BERTA W) 3 2 A (E A8 B

AR 2 2 A (R - BT 2 B
BB R 2 E AR

74 1 9 A LT R Ja S i 35 T B
HHBERFEHEAEEEFTHLAR
{H o %51 AN E R > ALK
TR O 5 = 05 5 A R A AR R
il A< 5 B B A T o S A R R
A 45 [ 10 P BEL A1 IS 5 AR U B
% e F > LI AT SL R P E B A 0 RF
fET7IE K3 A L EFT R A o A
5 ] 09 LR 1 o I BRI AR 2
LV NENA N SR IR IR S
(0 2> R AR AS o 2R 2 i A\ AN 28 T IF
A B ] ) L 1 o R LA A S 3 U
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS AND 1. FENEHERBEBURYWERR

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
— continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing
different buildings in the Group is the unit sale rate,
which is ranging from approximately HK$6,000 per square
foot to HK$32,000 per square foot (2018: approximately
HKS$6,000 per square foot to HK$29,000 per square foot),
taking into account age, location and other individual
factors such as size and levels of building. A decrease in
the unit sale rate would result in decrease in fair value
measurement of the buildings by the same percentage

decrease and vice versa.

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2019 and 2018. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2019 and
2018.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$16,382,000 (2018: HK$17,012,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasechold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledges are set out in note 37

to the consolidated financial statements.

B—&

2 A [ A [R) A A (B A Y Lo — I
I%ﬁ%@%ﬁkﬁﬁa“u%%%

I 298 J5 6,000 7T 28 AT 7 IR
32,000‘#%?5 (ZF— /\4E © B94°F W
6,000 7T & &1 77 29,0009 7T) ) >
R B MY b 2 A H A A A
R (NS AR /ANFIEERE) o BA 8B AE
TR R BT 2 A A FHE AR R
A R T R R Z IR o

R-F-NER_F - NF=H
=SB BB A SR
H3fE o EHE_F-NEFER_F N
SrEi= + Jt@ Al R R
S 5

i 25 48 S AE AL > B AR T R
O AR R FH AT K B EF R (E
5 2016,382,000% o6 (= F — /L 4F -
17,012,000%57G) 745 & W £ 51 ik -

A H A AR A B A T A B e S ik
FHEHR o AE B A R B R F%ﬁ%ﬁ
AR o A BT 2 RE S O A A
A5 R M 5E37 o
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bra TR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-NAF=A=+BHLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

trading rights amounting to HK$500,000 (2018:

HK$500,000) were no longer utilised to generate profits to
the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing on these
trading rights, the recoverable amount has been determined
based on secondary market prices and no impairment
was made at 31 March 2019 and 2018. The recoverable
amounts of other trading rights with carrying value of
HK$1,601,000 (2018: HK$1,601,000) held by the Group
have been determined with reference to the recoverable
amounts based on a value-in-use calculation. Details of the
impairment test on other trading rights are set out in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets amounting to HK$6,312,000 (2018:
HK$6,309,000) represent club memberships. For the
purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEEE
Trading rights
in Stock Club
EXChan%ﬁ memberships Total
ZRERE e S5t
HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
T oC T e S STH
Cost B A
At 1 April 2017 W_F—LEMA—H 5,850 6,709 12,559
Disposal of subsidiaries H B N 7 (3,678) = (3,678)
At 31 March 2018 and W & — )\
1 April 2018 =A=+—HxK
—EF—/)NFEMNHA—H 2,172 6,709 8,881
Addition NE - 3 3
31 March 2019 R=-ZE—NEF
=H=+—H 2,172 6,712 8,884
Impairment e
At 1 April 2017 W FE—LFEMNH—H 3,196 400 3,596
Disposal of subsidiaries B e N (3,125) - (3,125)
At 31 March 2018 and T F— )4
31 March 2019 “H=+—H K
—EF—)NFEMNHA—H 71 400 471
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2019 R=ZZE—N&F
=A=+-—8H 2,101 6,312 8,413
At 31 March 2018 & — )\4E
=H=+—H 2,101 6,309 8,410
The management of the Group determined that certain AR E 2 A L R By T 5 $0500,000

ot (—E— /\E 500,000 JC) Z 38
5 FE TS BE ) LA Ay A 45 | 7 A= 3 ) o
TE ) I 55 32 5y A AT 0 (E A I IRy >
Al Ie] 4 AE EARBE T F i 8 WE n
fEE o N E AR FE—/)NFEZ=
HZ=+—H MW mE - AAEBEEAE
T {8 £51,601,000% 7T (. F — JU4E -
1,601,000 70) 2 HAh 32 5 # 1) w] iz [m]
SH > B2 m &5 WA
B E FF M e - HoAh 22 5 2 8
%i@@ﬂ;ﬁ W A 45 A W i R Mt sE20
E% o

5y #6,312,000% o6 (. F — L4 ¢
63090002%7% 2 Y E E 48 g B

o Tt & BT & FE 2 W E AR T E
Tuﬁcﬁléﬁﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁ% %’:Fﬁ%%ﬂ‘%g

the second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No ERAMEE - 25 G a2 i
impairment loss was recognised in years ended 31 March Il R N E T — ﬂﬁiﬁig
2019 and 2018 with reference to the recoverable amount of —/NF=ZH =+ —H kL5 5 R

the club memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading
rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

9 (E e 18, -

AAFERGD S > LKHHER G &k
HoA B R AE R 4EH -
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON OTHER

21.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBEER AT o

TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements have been
allocated to the broking cash generating unit (“CGU”) (see
note 8 of the consolidated financial statements for details
of segment information). The carrying amounts of certain
trading rights, net of accumulated impairment losses, at 31
March 2019 and 2018 allocated to the unit are as follows:

Trading rights: REE:
Carrying value at 1 April 2017, =

31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019

=+ —HZIREE

20. 13X 5 8 2 B E R

AR R 5 R R M SR 19 2 T A IR
JE i AR A2 5 HEE o0 L B AR AL 0
Z ANBLEAL ([RIBLEAL ) (B iR &
B2 w1 > w2 B AR A B R T
8) o ML ERZ N 2 T 5 HE (41

EA=+r—HE_F—-N4E=A

B B R UER
— = A= — H IR T
HK$’000
Tt 7

— LM —H - S E— A
1,601

The recoverable amounts of the broking CGU containing
certain trading rights have been determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2018: 12%) and at zero (2018: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the broking CGU to
fall below the aggregate carrying amount of the broking
CGU.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

21.

WEETEH M2 LA BLE AL 2 A
Wi T 4 B AR 8 AR A M R O Ok T
E o w%wt LA AR PR B A 2 TLAR
BB TE A LL12% (T — JV4E © 12%)
ZHMB R RE (T NLEE) 2
WRFESHSREEN - FHE 2
RREEMEENBERZ FEMBRK -
TS R TR I5 DA 1E 2 R B % g
BTG W o B e A
5 o AR w2 AT o] A 3] B 2 A
AN BB AC A BB A 2 A R AT i (e
BRI RS AL RN B A 2 A RHARTH(E -

Hith &=
o & £ AARA TR L 5 BT R
SiE T 2 E R HAb IR & - ARG S
jﬁz:§+4%\ ©
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22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

rE MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-NAF=A=+BHLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

22. EWBRIE

2019 2018
—E-hF| ZE2-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it & TR THET
Accounts receivable arising from the 755 B & EH H E A 2
business of dealing in securities: JE W R IH
— Cash clients —HaexF (a) 8,879 23,460
— Margin clients: —REEEF (b)
— Directors and their — R I FEZBE
close family members Kk 8 167,189 22,469
— Other margin clients —HAREEEF 3,565,374 4,069,006
— HKSCC — E s - 4,438
Accounts receivable from WIBREEGHER P EER
futures clearing house arising B B8 &5 5 i 2 B iR IE
from the business of dealing
in futures contracts 3,390 15,997
3,744,832 4,135,370
Less: Loss allowances W R (37,411) (17,321)
3,707,421 4,118,049

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from

cash clients and securities clearing house are two days

after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures

clearin ouse are one day arter trade aate. € accounts
1 gh day after trade date. All th f

receivable (net of loss allowance) are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and

loss allowance for ECL of accounts receivable is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Sy HAE—H o PrA BECRTA (0 Bk 18
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes:

(a)

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBEER AT o

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$154,000 (2018: HK$1,597,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period but which the directors of the
Company consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which are

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period,

22. EWERIE — &

(a)

Ba% P 2 BRI b - ALHE A o
2K B 48 A 1 AR T 2% 154,0005 TG
(= — /4 1 1,597,00045 76) 2 FE UL
A > MEAS N R B R 5 A B R E
e > B A A BRIEZ fEEE R
48 Rt o T AR 00 il T (B L R AR

1A

At R R g E NI A (R
W B 4B % 5 RRIAN & AR BR R 0 AT

the ageing analysis (from settlement date) is as follows: (M &H H RS nF
2019 2018
—E-NF T\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AR
0-30 days 0230k 141 1,586
31-60 days 31 860K 1 =
Over 60 days B 60K 12 11
154 1,597

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$8,725,000 (2018:
HK$21,863,000) are neither past due nor impaired at the
end of the reporting period and the directors of the Company

are of the opinion that the amounts are recoverable.

Loans to margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of approximately
HK$13,791,493,000 (2018: HK$18,438,760,000).
Significant portion of the pledged securities are listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The loans are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date and carry interest typically at
Hong Kong prime rate plus 2% to 5.13% per annum (2018:
Hong Kong prime rate plus 2% to 4.45% per annum).
Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios for
calculating their margin values. Additional funds or collateral
are required if the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible
margin value of securities deposited. The collateral held can
be pledged and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle

any outstanding amount owed by margin clients.

A WK > MR TRNE 458,725,000 J6
(% — L4 : 21,863,000% 70) 2 JE
WO & % 5 2 B TH £ I 48360 10 S 4 3
B > AN F) #3205 A B K 25 0] A
Wi g o

HTHEAFRESFFZ2ERIUE
F 2 {03 SR > AR H 2 A
e {H £13,791,493,000% o6 (& — /A
4F 1 18,438,760,000 J0) © & i bl
B AR 58 55 A6 B R4 35 25 R G B B
e M -F—NE=ZA=+—H - F
B R 45 53 FA % 28 i R R
S 788 4 AR R 28 75 v o 0 R % 2
JEES I3JE (T F— /4 ik H
F R N2 2 4.45)8) 518 o 75 7 o
THEEZ BB & L RUGHA RS
fEEH - A ARMBEEKFEBCHFAZFH
FHEEREESEME NeERE
JF R AL AR AN 4 SHCAT 5 o TR 2
HEAT G 0T DUF A o T A 4 9 mT Y 1
A2 B AT IR 8 e &P EA 2 AT
CES YT €
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BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued 22. B ARIE — &
Notes: — continued Msk © — %8
(b) — continued (b)y —#4
Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising BTG EWEEZEREEEER
from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due Y > fdgE S A HBR% FiE A
from directors and their close family members. The details RER > =BT
are as follows:
Maximum amount Market value of pledged
Balance outstanding securities
i BeARESH ERES2HE
During During
the year the year
At At At ended ended At At
1April  31March  31March 31 March 31 March  31March 31 March
Name 2017 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Bz Bz
R R ZE-Nf ZE-Nf i R
R ZB-N\F ZE-NF =A =R ZE-N\§ ZE-h%
“E—tF =A =A Er=H Sr=1[¢ =A =A
#a mA-B =t-H =t-H LEE tEE  =t-H Er=0

HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T T TER T TER T TERL

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, L B 5

director of the Company (AN F#EE) J

and his close family P 338

TS - = = 464 1,312 = 9,762
Mr. Hung Hon Man, i $'¢iti

director of the Company, ~ (AAFEF) -
his close family members % K i i B K&
and a controlling entity  — [ £ | 1,819 22,469 167,018 22,469 227,807 955,351 2,856,393

Mr. Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, 48 {# J& A4
director of the Company (AN F#EH) J

and his close family ZERBEHE

members - - 171 — 171 2,976 5,607
The above balances are repayable on demand and bear DA b &5 i 5 2 JHE B OR 8 35 NI i B
interest at commercial rates which are similar to the HAl R 35 4 % F 4t > F1) K AH
rates offered to other margin clients. ARG o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

23.

24,

25.

26.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &£ mEBEAER AT

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. BARIE - BE R HEMER
RECEIVABLES

2019 2018

—E—hE —FE— )\

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T T

Prepayments TE AT R IE 1,530 1,472

Other deposits A e 42 1,347 2,255

Other receivables At 7 Wi 3k TE 50 365

2,927 4,092

All balances are expected to be recovered within one year
except for deposits of approximately HK$1,347,000 (2018:
HK$2,255,000).

T A &5 R 2 TE IR — AF R [ > HEA)
1,347,000 70 (& — /\4F : 2,255,000
W on) Z IR BRAL o

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 24, BHERE
2019 2018
ZE-AF | CFE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT T#TT
Held for trading, at fair value BFIEEE  BARE
Equity securities — listed in Hong Kong Hs b ARSI 170 158
BANK BALANCES - CLIENT ACCOUNTS 25. RITHEER—FFRF
The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients AL [ & 5y HH SET o B N AT 2 B
and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the Y B T WSROI R A A R A
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’ RAL 2 ¥ - WERF HHE TR —
monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank R 52 (8 73 S ERATHRF o AL O
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding FOE N A B R T S H AR S A 2 3k
accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions T (B5E27) ©
(note 27).
BANK BALANCES -~ GENERAL 26. RITER——HREFRAS

ACCOUNTS AND CASH
The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and

short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 1.5% (2018: 0% to 0.96%) per annum.

AR EAEALEHFAFZBE > U
B ¥ i 85 B R (AR R R A o 21,58
(=F— /N4 0JEE0.96/H)) 51 E 2%
WIERATN -

e ANNUAL REPORT 2019 g



rE MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-NAF=A=+BHLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 27. B IRIE
2019 2018
ZE-RFE | ZEF-)NE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
[ TR TH T
Accounts payable arising from the HWHEEBEERPEEZ
business of dealing in securities: JEE AT R IH
— Cash clients —BEeREF (a) 119,718 148,234
— Margin clients —REBEF (b) 1,041,015 315,238
— HKSCC —HBAHR (a) 25,586 -
Accounts payable to clients arising WMEEGHEEEEF
from the business of dealing in 7EHE 2 FEAT 2% P IR IE
futures contracts () 9,884 18,992
1,196,203 482,464

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give

additional value in view of the nature of business.

(a) The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to
cash clients and securities clearing houses are two days

after trade date.

(b) Amounts due to securities margin clients and futures
clients are repayable on demand and carry interest
at 0.25% (2018: 0.25%) per annum. Included in
accounts payable to margin clients arising from the
business of dealing in securities are amounts due to
directors of the Company, their close family members
and a controlling entity of approximately HK$1,000
(2018: HK$1,104,000).

(c) Accounts payable to clients arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits
received from clients for their trading of futures
contracts on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited (the “HKFE”). The excesses of the
outstanding amounts over the required initial margin
deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to

clients on demand.

BREB ZMH > AN R EHB IR
e 73 A7 i SR REAME o PR L S B 9 R
ARt AT o

(@ BANBE®EF LEF4HE T2k
M IEW AR RAZ S A EMH -

(b) REHFREFEEEF MMEEREF XK
TH ZE S B2 oK IRy 22 30 H 4%0.25 8
L;? JNAE 1 0.25)8) 2 4 F 5t

o W I H H ¥ E k2 EAT R
%égﬁ%ﬁ$=ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
AlEH - REZBEBERIGRE K
2 il B B B 3K 491,000 0 (—
E— /\4FE 11,104,000 70) ©

() MBEHEEEG PELEZ BN
KPR > S48 & P B A
FEHMERSIARAR (T
i) EEME G ZRE &K
& o Eﬂ%x%ﬁmﬁmzmﬁ
RS 4A 2 MR IB R H
AR BRI -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

28.

29.

ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 28. Bt BRI R HM BT FIE
PAYABLES
2019 2018
—EBE—RE ZF— )\
HK$°000 HKS$°000
FH Tt
Accruals ME ST 2 3,689 4,511
Other payables At JE A5 3K IH 4,754 2,411
8,443 6,922
BANK BORROWINGS 29. RITIEE
2019 2018
—EB—-AE —F— )\
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T T
Secured bank borrowings, variable rate A KM ERATEE > W5 H| R - 60,000

The maturity of the bank loans based on repayment
schedule (ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

clause) is as follows:

— R

Within one year

MR BRI ] 2 SRATHR B B (R 5
LB BORE MR B WE

2019 2018
—E-hE —FE— )\
HK$’000 HK$°000
THER T

- 60,000

The interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings is Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.8% per annum.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had banking facilities
totaling HK$905,000,000 (2018: HK$710,000,000).
These banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company. Details of
the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had undrawn amounts
under these banking facilities of HK$905,000,000 (2018:
HK$650,000,000).

A 55 B 22 SRAT 5 L 2 A 3R U RAT
(7] S 7 200 4 4F 1.8 -

MNoZE—NFE=ZHA=+—H > A&EH
B2 4 4£905,000,0009 7T (& — A
4 710,000,009 J0) Z SRATAE BEH o
W SBRATE BRI EF 2 B K%
T M AREEETYEZIT > DEAK
NEIEEH Z ATFIERIE ISR - ANE
B B 2 EE RS R SR M)
R rE37H g -

N B NFEZHAH=ZF+—H K&
B 7E )t S 4R AT 15 B A PR R 2 HUK
% £905,000,000% 6 (—F — )4 ¢
650,000,000 7€) °
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 September 2017 (the “Bond Issue Date”), the
Company issued convertible bonds, with coupon interest
rate of 2% per annum, in the principal amount of
HK$525,000,000 (“Convertible Bonds”) to not less than
six independent placees who were professional, institutional
or private investors and whose ultimate beneficial owners
were independent third parties. The coupon interest is
accrued at the outstanding principal amount of Convertible
Bonds and shall only be payable by the Company to the
bondholders once every six months from the Bond Issue
Date if Convertible Bonds are neither converted during
the conversion period nor redeemed prior to 1 September
2019 (the “Bond Maturity Date”). Convertible Bonds can
be converted into maximum 500,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at a conversion price of HK$1.05 per share.
The conversion period commenced from the Bond Issue
Date up to and including the date falling on the seventh day

immediately prior to the Bond Maturity Date.

At initial recognition, Convertible Bonds were separated
into a liability component and an equity component
representing the conversion options of the bondholders.
The fair value of the liability component and the value of
the equity conversion component were determined at the
Bond Issue Date. The fair value of the liability component
was calculated using a market interest rate of 5.94% per
annum for instruments without a conversion option of
comparable credit status which is referenced to professional
valuation conducted by an independent professionally
qualified valuer. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion component, has been

included in the convertible bonds reserve.

As the fair value of Convertible Bonds was determined
using valuation models for which involved unobservable
inputs, the day-one loss, which represented difference
between the nominal value and the fair value of Convertible
Bonds at the Bond Issue Date, was not recognised in profit

or loss immediately but was deferred.

rE MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

30. AT AR E

WoE—tFE LA — B ([EHEBET
H 1) > A2 F] W) A DA 7S 4 %8 S K i
N (HIEZE - MBS ARES > HiE
BRERWA NABLE =) i1 4A %
% £5525,000,0009 7 2 28 22 5L A] #2 fii
&% ([R5 ]) - 225 Al S ]
ol R R A S RS > il i
JIE AR 5 A 46 B A TAQ o A4 4 B —
— JUAE LA — B Z Hi R i 0] ([ 25
2 HE D > B E 54T H RS
A B AN R mAESRREA A A -
] 1 S BT 4 R 1 4 1 .05 9 TG
4 5 F% 195500,000,000 8% A 28 7] 3 48
o I EFETHMEG A2
FOFEBEEESFI MBS LA EA
1EHAMH -

AW A R AR E > W] HRBLAE 2 00y RUIE
oy RAERR R RERMEHRAANZ
1 HE o AR 7 2 0N o fE K HE 45
Wiy 2 EEREFRTAREE - A
BB AW EERL R ik#EZ T
Ho HAMIY 2~ R EMN AT SEE
F#s.94%wHH > TIZ2H MBI HES
AR Al (E AT 2 R E A - fR
R R R 2 B ) B FFA
A 0L A 55 At A

AT AR 25 2 o8 SRR i 9 R d
BEm AR M EBAREE > B H
e 45 (B AT $f6 Je 05 7 T (L B AR o5 8 4T
HZ A RMEZ 25 > I 7% B 48 43
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued

The carrying value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component of Convertible Bonds is
net of the deferred day-one loss which is allocated to the
liability component and the equity conversion component
on the same allocation basis of the allocation of the fair
value of Convertible Bonds. The deferred day-one loss
in the liability components is amortised over the term of
Convertible Bonds on the basis similar with the effective
interest method and included in “Interest on convertible
bonds” in profit or loss and the deferred day-one loss in the
equity conversion component will be accounted for in the

same basis as the equity conversion component.

The effective interest rate of the liability component of
Convertible Bonds on initial recognition, which excluded
the impact of the deferred day-one loss, is 7.43% per

annum and is subsequently carried at amortised cost.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Convertible
Bonds held by four bondholders of principal amount of
HK$262,500,000 were redeemed by the Company at the
redemption price of HK$262,500,000. The redemption
price was allocated to the liability component and the
equity component on the same basis as used in the
allocation of the fair value of Convertible Bonds at initial
recognition. At the date of redemption, the difference
between the redemption price allocated to the liability
component and the net carrying amount of the liability
component amounted to approximately HK$38,867,000
was recognised as a loss in profit or loss and the residual
amount of the redemption price of approximately
HK$17,811,000 was recognised in equity. Upon the
redemption of Convertible Bonds, the remaining amount of
the convertible bond reserves attributable to the redeemed
Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$88,499,000 was

transferred to retained profits.

No Convertible Bonds were converted into ordinary shares
of the Company up to 31 March 2019.

30. I RRES - &

A 4 B AR 2 R 20 M B £ A B
ZHRTHE TS AN BRARSE 1 H 518 > T 4%
S ] 4 B AR 2 4 o (E 2 LM R 22 0%
Pic 56 e 73 TiC 28 64 5 A0 0 D B i 4 70
gy o BRI 2 R AE T H G 4E LA B
T M) 3035 SR AL 2 2 A A T 4 R o
RS > R IR AR P AT R AR
ZFE TR > T HE i WA AT ) 2 R
T Jls 1851 LA B HE £ ST 20 A (]
ZHHENIR o

T U RR IR > W] 4 0 B AR Ay
Z B BRI (MERELE & H 5 1H 2 5
B F7.43% > HAR 1% W8 AR B R

BE X -NE=ZH=+—HI4
FE > A% > ) DA 1] 5262,500,000% I
JE o) VO 2 e A NPT A &8 5
262,500,000 JC 19 7] # fB fE 55 o i [0
15 2 4] 25 e R IR AT 4 B AR 55 N A fE 43
Be T F ) A [ 2 43 i 2 B A 4
BE 22 05 o ATE | B W > o B 2 AR
43 B HE e B AR S 43 B R T I
{H 4938,867,000%5 7T 2 [H] ) 25 %8 i 48
gt R R 2 s 4R o T I A O R AR
L 4917,811,000% 7T 7 HE 42 b 58 -
AV [ AT A AR 5 A% L [l AT 4R AR
& 75 ME AL 22 W] 4 A1 2 b 5 2 BR AL 4D
88,499,000 7T O 8 18 % 1 B4 i | o

BWE_F—NE=ZH=1T—H  HE
T 0 J A 7 AR 2y A ) R A A
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BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued 30. I RES — &
The Convertible Bonds recognised at the end of the A Bl R T R 2 ] R B A 5 R A
reporting period are calculated as follows: W
Gross Deferred Net
Amount day-one loss Amount
EEEB
W BB FH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T AR P
Liability component BERD
Fair value of liability component & f&# 7 i EF5 4517 H
at the Bond Issue Date Zn e 480,615 (173,694) 306,921
Allocated issue costs B 43 Bt 217 (7,665) - (7,665)
472,950 (173,694) 299,256

Interest expenses for the period: A | 5 B 5 :

Imputed interest expenses il B F B B X 17,040 = 17,040
Amortisation of deferred day R AE T H e 15 4 8
one loss = 40,669 40,669
17,040 40,669 57,709
Coupon interest paid/accrued oft/ ExtE s (6,125) = (6,125)
At 31 March 2018 and A B — N4
1 April 2018 =H=+r—H R
—F—/)\4HEHH—H 483,865 (133,025) 350,840
Interest expenses for the year: GNPLPSY:
Imputed interest expenses fili B F) BB 2 31,934 = 31,934
Amortisation of deferred day RAE T H e 15 4 8
one loss — 64,741 64,741
31,934 64,741 96,675
Coupon interest paid/accrued it/ ExtE S (8,169) = (8,169)
Redemption of the Convertible JIE [m] m] A 55
Bonds (250,837) 45,015 (205,822)
(259,006) 45,015 (213,991)
At 31 March 2019 A S I
=== 256,793 (23,269) 233,524
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BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS - continued

30. I RRES - &

Gross Deferred Net
Amount day-one loss Amount
EEZEE A
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T THTT T
Equity component Eado
Nominal value of A 6 1 75 2 T A
Convertible Bonds 822,421 (297,421) 525,000
Fair value of liability component & & #B /0 it & 75 8847 H
at the Bond Issue Date 2l (480,615) 173,694 (306,921)
Allocated issue costs [ e = e (5,460) = (5,460)
Equity component at the Bond MMEHEATH -
Issue Date, 31 March 2018 — & — )\4E
and 1 April 2018 =HA=Z+—H R
=& — /NI H
— H R4 336,346 (123,727) 212,619
Redemption of i In] w4 % £
Convertible Bonds (168,173) 61,863 (106,310)
As at 31 March 2019 N E— LA
=H=+—H 168,173 (61,864) 106,309
31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. & FE BiIH

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax

AR 7% A% 45 B 22 70 S8 30 JE 436406 13 ALY

provision were as follows: GNP )
Accelerated tax Revaluation
depreciation  of properties Total
MEHERE BEfYE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T T 0
At 1 April 2017 AR LA —H 894 1,835 2,729
Disposal of subsidiaries H B B N ) 15 = 15
Charge to other comprehensive IR A 4E B HoAth
income for the year 2 T U £ = 140 140
At 31 March 2018 AT — A
EHE=E+—F 909 1,975 2,884
Charge to other comprehensive FN R A 4F B HoAt
income for the year 2 TH IR £t - 563 563
At 31 March 2019 R_F— L
=HE =k 909 2,538 3,447

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &£ mEBEAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated

32.

31.

unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$26,380,000
(2018: HK$20,345,000) available to offset against future

profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to

uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried

forward indefinitely.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

liabilities for financial reporting purposes:

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

ELERIE -8

AR BAR > A8 H A 426,380,000 45
JC (. F—/\4E 1 20,345,000 70) Z Ak
R Bl B TE s 1R AT R DA B R A s
Fl o F A R BB E A% 2R 1 1 R R TR
DR 1h Slf7 48 e 5 o T e 8 S v 4 R 3 45
o

RSB (A7) FU AL B L T
SRR

Assets Liabilities
BE af
2019 2018 2019 2018
“R-RE | ZEONE | ZB-AE | ZTOAR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER THT TR ST
Accelerated tax depreciation T T 4 8 (259) (259) 1,168 1,168
Revaluation of properties EXLE/ES - = 2,538 1,975
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities EERE (BE) Al (259) (259) 3,706 3,143
SHARE CAPITAL 32. B A&
Number of shares Amount
RHEE £ ]
2019 2018 2019 2018
Se-nE | SE-AR| CB-RE| SE-AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each T T (E0.0135 7T 27 4 it
Authorised: BE:
At the beginning and the end T B4 B s 0 4
of the reporting period 10,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
At beginning and the end of the TR A7 B 4
reporting period 2,500,000,000 | 2,500,000,000 25,000 25,000
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HE_Z

—NEZA=+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed on 16

March 2016. The major terms of the Option Scheme are

summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED & & mEBEER AT o

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel to
provide additional incentive to employees (full-time
and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers of
the Group, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of

the Group.

The eligible participants of the Option Scheme include
any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of our Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner
or service provider of the Group, who in the absolute
discretion of the Board of Directors has contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares (250,000,000 shares) of the Company in issue.

33. BRRRESTE
ANTEMRBER - BE—NEZH A
28308 2 e 22 4% 40— TE I S At 3 o)
(W RSB 1) o R PREME ST ) > Jo 38

Pk

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

WA F

Jils S W T 3 5 TE R ) B R B
BN E -~ AR A (2K
Fehk) - - G A
f] ~ 0 G P~ R EL AN - BEERE
B~ BF - 1 2 P SUIR B it
JRE T i (3R A B LA S 9 8 A 4R
HESE Y IFRES

B SR HE S B 2 & B 2 B LA
EHGHHBHM BRSO L
B AR AR AR R 2 AR 4R
BAL AT R B (2B e R ) -
E TN R e S R
ol 3 B A~ AT AT 43 B W~ R
- - B -FF
SR PF IR TS E T o

DRI A7 {of 4R 4052 B e A T ) e A= 4 1)
2 AT o] L Al B R T ) BT A R K
W A AT il 2 BT A IR I AT R 2
TFERITZ M E EREFIAS
B A F) R IR BB AT A AT
ol 5 R 3% 25 BRI 2 30% ©

PRI A7 ol A 41 M8 e EE 5t ) e A 4 [
2 AT o] A i TSR T ) BT AR th 2
JT A B R RE I RT BB ZH TR AT 2 B
HFEY G N v /N 4
T 210% (250,000,000 1% A%
fy) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

(i)

()

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

A share option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 7 business days from the date of the offer
of grant of the share option.

The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i) the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grang;

(ii) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company.

The Option Scheme will expire on 15 March 2026.

There were no share option granted to eligible participants
during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. There

Wwere

no outstanding share options at 31 March 2019 and

2018.
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33. R R & - ]|

(e)

®

(8)

(h)

(i)

()

RBEE-F-NER-F

T AT AT 124 S0 FD R 4 o AR 4% M
e HE T 1) % A A2 A T HE A J B
E 3 By % 2 i e > T 2 )
2 B P AT KT REZH 1) 45 2 B
Eg) Z%%wﬁljﬁﬁﬁa

5 B o AR A (I B T )

AR AR /N ) IR 36 ExZIKZI% °

J s - ol Sz S AR E T AT 6 AT
TR T e 2 B E R

Ji e HE T S S i 2 TR
BE RF AT 68 > 5% 09 ] ZH b SR 42 T
FERCHEE R H 2 B H . =
15 9 PR AR 4 T JiE 9 o

S B 00 e A0k S PR o RS R
P AT AR A R AR 7
26 H A2 0 B B o

i B E 2 17
ZEREAH

EME A5 N3 =&+

(i) 4% BT A HE e H A
Wk 22 By 2 B H BB R TR 2
AR ) B W T A

(i) FEWELEZTHBEERD
WA TR 22 5 B AR B A T 2
5 H R AR s 2 AN
TP H (8 5 K

(iii) A2 7 AR T {E -

S TR R R TN =
+ 5 H W -

4+*H¢$FIEﬁA§%,A

A RO

—NERZ

\—-%

—/\EZH =+ — B I 8 K1 ﬁz
e % o

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ##€m&EEER A A

187



n B BT 8 AR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

34. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. HWB &R ER

Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from

AEEMEMEESEE L ABZEH)

financing activities are as follows: =0
2019 —F-NF
Non-cash changes
FREED
Loss on
redemption
At Net of At
1 April cash Interest Interest ~convertible 31 March
2018 flows expense accrued bonds 2019
)iS
jiS —B-hF
—E-N\E AR =A
mA-H RERFE RNEMX RIAFNE BEF2ERE =t1-H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Ti#n Tign TET Ti#n TET T#x
Loan from ultimate A% H fc & #5 i /4 l
holding company ZEH - (82) 82 - - -
Bank borrowings RATH & 60,000 (60,127) 127 - - -
Liability component  AJ 4 [l i % 2 £ &
of convertible ko
bonds 350,840 (252,421) 96,675 (437) 38,867 233,524
Total liabilities from il & 7if B & £ 2
financing activities £ fEAEH 410,840 (312,630) 96,884 (437) 38,867 233,524
2018 ZE N\
Non-cash changes
F BB
At At
1 April Net cash Interest Interest 31 March
2017 flows expense accrued 2018
iy
iy =T\
T ) =
MA—H BemnEsE  FMERZ  RiHE =t+—H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tk Tkt T Tt
Loan from ultimate A& g B e/ )
holding company 2B — (1,385) 1,385 — —
Bank borrowings SRATIE - 60,000 = = 60,000
Liability component of A4t fif % 2 £ &
convertible bonds w43 = 294,006 57,709 (875) 350,840
Total liabilities from il B
financing activities B EA% — 352,621 59,094 (875) 410,840

Details of convertible bonds are disclosed in notes 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &£ mEBEAER AT

L M EE30 o
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35.

36.

37.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income. The contributions, amounting approximately
HK$711,000 (2018: HK$632,000), are charged to the

profit or loss as incurred.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS -
AS LESSEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of berth and staff

quarters which fall due as follows:

—EN

Within one year

35.

36.

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

EHRBERGTE

A4 ] AR 05 0 M BR 4 w8 46k
ZHLR BB 5 BT R A B R R
2 BLRRAE R w8 ([ &5t # ) -
50 A A T E 2 G R S B
BRI o A4 1 O AR 98 B IRk E it
FHEE A EREESAARBEA
B 25wtk o 74 B A711,000% 6 (=
F— \4F 1 632,000 70) 2 R E A
A IR AE 48 4 R

REeHEAE-FRAEA

T o AR A 2 B R AT SR 2 3R
i & B T 1 4 1 A8 8 LA 19 R 2R IR
HEREZFHEMT -

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

37.

2019 2018
—EB—-RE —F— )\
HK$’000 HK$°000
FE T TH# 70
121 119

EERKH

DA AR E 2 & C IR > fERAA
5 B IR SR AT (5 R A

2019 2018
ZE-hEF | ZFN\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR Tt

Hong Kong EaR
Leasehold land FHE 69,024 71,465
Buildings K 36,430 34,430
105,454 105,895

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also secured
by charges over clients’ pledged securities of fair value of
approximately HK$484,182,000 (2018: HK$773,626,000)
at 31 March 2019 and corporate guarantees issued by the
Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties:

(a) Transactions

Name of related party
BEALHE E8

Directors of the Company and their close family members

ANFAERURMEZ

ZERRN A

Messts. Hung Hon Man, Shum Kin Wai, Frankie, Hung Sui
Kwan, their close family members and controlling entities
USSR AR WERMEE  WEZRE
HIG I B DA B )

Key management personnel and directors of GN Holdings

and their close family members (note vi)

HHrERZ TEERABRERD RNEZ BERRM A
(fff i)

Messts. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, Kam Leung Ming, Cheng
Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau, Larry, their close family members and
controlling entities

HBE A~ Bt - B eA - REREE
5% 2 B F M BB A B P

Directors of the Company and their close family members
A EH UL 2 RERRILA
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Hung Sui Kwan, their close family
members and controlling entities
BEIULE ~ B - R
RIEIR A B o B B

Key management personnel and directors of GN Holdings
and their close family members (note vi)
AR EREEA R REHD R BEREN A
(Ht5Evi)
Messts. Kam Leung Ming, Cheng Wai Ho, Ng Hon Sau, Larry,
their close family members and controlling entities
HoEwe - BESEL - AL
EF8 S IV VYL

38.BAEALRS
SR f5  FE 5 Sk 3 LAt R A7 P 48 B 2 52
5/ EORLAN o A SR A AR AT AR

R N
(a) XZ
Nature of transaction 2019 2018
REME “E-hE “E— )\
HK$’000 HK$000
TERT TiT
Brokerage commission 2,903 2,070
income (note i)
R E A
(Bt D)
Brokerage commission 68 117
income (note i)
RAH B WA
(FiF5EL)
Interest income (note ii) 9,899 325
FEMCA (ki)
Interest income (note ii) 11 136
FE A (W 2Eii)
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

continued

(a) Transactions — continued

rE MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE

—E-NF=ZR=+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

3B.HAEALXRSE &

() XZ—&

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2019 2018
BEATHE /&8 XHHE —E-hE —F— 4
HK$°000 HK$000
TR T
GN Holdings Underwriting and . 4,187
placing commission
income (note iii)
gt (XY RN
(it ki)
GN Holdings Management fee 2,520 2,520
income (note iv)
ilagide EHBLA (B iTiv)
GN Holdings Loan interest expenses 82 1,385
(note v)
ifagide M BB X
(i 5Ev)

Notes: B 51

(i) Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2018: () MEHEXHBEMEZ0.1%E
0.1% to 0.25%) on the total value of transactions. 0.25% (—F — J)\4E 1 0.1% 2

0.25%) Yl -

(ii) Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.252% per (i)  FE LRSS B R R A
annum (2018: 7.236% to 9.252% per annum) on the ﬁfﬁ&ﬂ-ﬁi7,236%§9.252% (=%
outstanding balances of margin loans. — N4 1 7.236%%9.252%) Z 7]

R

(iii) Underwriting commission income was earned from GN (i) 6 8 AR 4 ST A T i) A 2 PG gl Pr
Holdings for underwriting services provided. 236 60 B IR S B B o

(iv) Management fee income was earned from GN Holdings (iv) &R T L 52 BN = M )
for office areas sharing. G g 2 IR B R

(v) Loan interest expense was charged by GN Holdings at (v) BRI B B S T e A R #6200 [
2% per annum outstanding pursuant to the revolving WBEHWAE T —EHFEALHA T
loan facility agreement dated 19 May 2017. H 2 1B S 3Rl & sk 2 RIEE

B H A e A A
(vi) Mr. Kam Leung Ming resigned as a director of the (vi) HBEAE® —F L4 H

Company and was appointed as an executive director of
GN Holdings on 28 April 2017.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — 3. HAEAIRS &
continued
(b) Remuneration to key management personnel (b) EEEBABZHM
The remuneration of members of key management, B &5 6 B0 5 e 6 B k14 P 5 58 2
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the wHAN FEEM NS ZHB W
consolidated financial statements, was as follows: s 8
2019 2018
—E—NE TE— )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TH#s T
Salaries and other benefits 4 K A s A 3,098 4,266
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B R AR R st 2 K 72 72
3,170 4,338
The remuneration of directors and other key B R H A E AN 2 H W
management personnel is determined by the S T AR N R B K 1T 5 M 57 € o

performance of individuals and market trends.

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEKE R F

Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-_Z—-NF=A=+—HLFE
On 20 December 2018, the Group completed the disposal WR_F—-NFE+_A_+H &%
of its entire equity interests in Genius Wise Holdings ¥ 5¢ B [7] Gainventure Holdings Limited
Limited (“Genius Wise”) at a total cash consideration of (BT ER 2 EENME AT I
United States dollars (“US$”) 1 to Gainventure Holdings £ H iR Genius Wise Holdings Limited
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of GN Holdings. ([ Genius Wisel) Z 2 HE » FAT &
Genius Wise is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands fRAE 5513570 © Genius Wise7 I Ji & &
and was inactive during the year. AR Sl VAN &G RNE R -
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39. HEMB L F - &
LA J G B B Rt B AR

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The following summarises the considerations and the

carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities at the dates of T B T (AR 2
the disposals:
Genius Wise
HK$°000
T T
Net assets disposed of FFHEEERE
Other payables Ho At B A 3K TH (12)
(12)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEME ARzl 12
Consideration A -
Net cash flow on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARZRERERE
Cash consideration received £ i 3 & A -

Year ended 31 March 2018 ﬁ_—t—q NE=ZA=Z+—-HLEFE
On 22 May 2017, the Group completed the disposal of R_FE—LHFEAH -+ H > KEH

its 100% equity interests in Pacific Challenge Securities
Limited (“PCS”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$71,121,000 to an independent third party. PCS held
type 1, 4, 9 licenses regulated by SFC and was inactive

immediately before the disposal.

On 9 November 2017, the Group completed the disposal of
its 100% equity interests in Superior Capital Assets Limited
(“Superior Capital”), and its subsidiary, e-Capitalist.com
(Asia) Limited (“e-Capitalist.com”), at a consideration of
approximately HK$13,724,000 to an independent third
party. The principal activity of Superior Capital was
investment holding and e-Capitalist.com held type 1, 4,
9 licenses regulated by SFC and was inactive immediately

before the disposal.

58 B 1) M S 55 = O B RT3
FHABRATR ([RFHFEBEZEFS ) 100%
JREHE > A A £71,121,000% 6 © KT
i Bl % B A HBE GRS 2
B B4 RO REELE
Hij B M 2 o

BoF—LFET AL ALK
B 1] 8 37 5 = 75t & Superior Capital
Assets Limited ([ Superior Capital 1) &
FLW ) 2 F B B BCE (R AR A
Al (T8 M BEE D) 100008 HE - (LR A
13,724,000%E JC © Superior CapitalZ
TR RN T M IRE R A
H e L R 1 SRR SR O
i B A B e o W 3K

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %%k ¢ GET NICE FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED #&#f £ mikE AR A &l

193



194

n A B 0 R R B R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—Z-NF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The following summarises the considerations and the

39. HEMB LR &

PATR 7% ¥ 2 B B H O 2 AU

carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities at the dates of e i T (AR -
the disposals:
Superior
Capital and
PCS e-Capitalist.com Total
Superior
A¥E* Capital &2
E ENRE Bt
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
T# T THs T TH T
Net assets disposed of FHEEERE
Intangible assets Y & & 553 - 553
Bank balances SRAT 45 % 61,827 3,737 65,564
Prepayments TE AT 3R IE 2 - 2
Deposits %4 196 - 196
Deferred tax assets % JE B IH A 15 = 15
Accounts payable JRE A B IH (1,472) = (1,472)
Other payables L Ath B A K IH = (13) (13)
61,121 3,724 64,845
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B QR 2 W 10,000 10,000 20,000
Consideration B 71,121 13,724 84,845
Net cash inflows on disposal HENBARZRE
of subsidiaries RAFEE
Cash Consideration B UE 71,121 13,724 84,845
Bank balances disposed of Fir B SR AT &5 i (61,827) (3,737) (65,564)
9,294 9,987 19,281
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40. CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

IN SUBSIDIARY THAT DO NOT RESULT
IN A LOSS OF CONTROL

In October 2018, GN Incorporated, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, disposed of its entire
equity interests in Get Nice Asset Management Limited
(“GNAM?”) at a total cash consideration of HK$2,000,000
to Get Nice Silk Road Investment Limited (“GN Silk
Road”), a 51% owned subsidiary of GN Incorporated.
GNAM is incorporated in Hong Kong and its principal

activity is provision of asset management services.

Upon completion of the disposal in October 2018, the
Group’s equity interests in GNAM were reduced from
100% to 51%, resulting in a decrease in non-controlling
interests of approximately HK$4,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$4,000.

rE MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

40. WEBRREZEHEZR B

MEARZEAEERSEH

BoE-NFETAARFAZEER
J& A FIGN Incorporated t & oA 45 4
EEEHARAA ((HKyEEER])
1) 42 P IRHE T GN Incorporated A 51%
Z W BN A AR IRE A R A H
(T ]) > BEZRBERER
2,000,000 JC 4% 4 B 2 o B A i
AR AL o HE R EH R R A A
R A5 o

W E—)FE A H R B R IEE
7 A [ A 4 - 7 A B Y AR P 100%
WD E519% > IR R 4R I D A
4,000 70 M AR 0N T RE 2 R A N AL
% 281 #94,0009 JC ©
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OF THE COMPANY

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

41. X2 7] 2 BB AR R

2019 2018
—E-NF —E— )\
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 5 FExT T T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries Nl NP <y 196,042 196,042
Property and equipment EYE L i 4 5
196,046 196,047
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments e 4 J VAT IR 934 933
Cash and cash equivalents Bl LBl %EEE 3,218 32,933
Amounts due from subsidiaries R A I J28 2 ] Kk IE 2,438,713 2,661,714
2,442,865 2,695,580
Current liabilities nEEE
Accrued charges JE 5t 2 1,410 1,847
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST Bt JB 2 ) R TE 180,414 159,672
Liability component of CIEC Y4 =R
convertible bonds 233,524 -
415,348 161,519
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,027,517 2,534,061
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 2,223,563 2,730,108
Non-current liabilities kREBERE
Liability component of AR 2 2 B
convertible bonds - 350,840
NET ASSETS BEEFE 2,223,563 2,379,268
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capiral i &N 32 25,000 25,000
Reserves b5 41(a) 2,198,563 2,354,268
TOTAL EQUITY B 2,223,563 2,379,268
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

bra TR R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

41. ARRZMBARR R &

(a) Movements of the reserves (a) REEH
Share Other  Convertible Contributed Retained
premium reserve  bonds reserve surplus profits Total
TRk
RORE HtRE EFEE EHE%  REE7 ag
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
[liE:3 THT THR THR ThAx ThEL THT
Ac 1 April 2017 REF—LE
MH—A 487,907 195,942 - 1486951 32,852 2,03,652
Profit for the year REEREAN = = = - 50,497 50,497
Transactions with owners: BREEAZRS .
Contributions and distributions & K /M Ik
- Dividends to owners —-mERAZBRE 16 (112,500) = = = = (112,500)
— Convertible bonds issued —BOmaRES 30 - - 212,619 = = 212,619
(112,500) - 212,619 - - 100,119
At 31 March 2018 REF—NE
=A=1+—H 375,407 195,942 212,619 1,486,951 83,349 2,354,268
Profit for the year KEERR - - - = 12,106 12,106
Transactions with owners: BREEAZRS .
Contributions and distributions & /M Ik
- Dividends to owners -mMEAAZRE 16 - = - - (1500000 (150,000)
- Redemption of convertible ~ — &[] o[ 4L (&%
bonds 30 = - (106,310) = 88,499 (17,811)
- - (106,310) - (61,501) (167,811)
At 31 March 2019 REF-NE
=R=1—H 375,407 195,942 106,309 1,486,951 33,954 2,198,563
Note: At 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company ffsk : RoF—JLFE=H=+—H -

available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$2,092,254,000 (2018:
HK$2,141,649,000) which included share premium,
other reserve, contributed surplus and retained

profits.

AN 7] 2 AT A TR T BE R 2 £
5 #1 £52,092,254,000% 7T (—
T — J\4E 1 2,141,649,0007
JC) > AL FE B0 v AE ~ HAth £
B~ BB AR T AR B T A o
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 2. FENEB A BFE

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are ARATF Z EEME A FREHWT
as follows:
Issued and Proportion of
Place of Class of fully paid nominal value of issued share capital Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital held by the Company activities
WEAR AR I B L 3 2 Fifs B 48 5l ERTRBERE ARRRAZERTRAEERDLL TEEH
2019 2018
ZB-hE e SayIC:2
Directly Indirectly — Directly  Indirectly
HE & Hi#% fi] £
GN Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary US$10,000 100 - 100 - Investment
Islands (“BVI”) holding
EEELHE  LER 10,000% ¢ feE
Get Nice Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HK$860,000,000 - 100 - 100 Securities dealing
Limited (‘GNS”) and broking
and securities
margin
financing
Sl RAT Hil L 860,000,000% ¢ i EE R AR
(T& a2 ) ES YT e
0
Non-voting deferred HK$40,000,000
shares (note 1)
BB 40,000,000% 7T
AR (BfEL)
Get Nice Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 100 - 100 Futures and
Company Limited options broking
BEMEARAR Eifs LY 20,000,004 7 W& R
e
Genius Wise BVI Ordinary US$1 - - - 100 Inactive
SRR il IE [iF 3¢
GN Silk Road BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 51 = 51 Investment
holding
Bl sk KEETRHE  ER 10,0003 ¢ BEER
Get Nice Currency Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Exchange Limited
St A R ik il 17T e
Get Nice Capital Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 - 100 Corporate finance
services
HHMEHRAR i L 10,000,000 7E R
GNAM Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 51 - 100 Asset management
(2018: HK$2,000,000) services
Sl EEEN Eit L 5,000,0004 7C BEE R
(ZF—
2,000,000 t)
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Issued and

Place of Class of fully paid

Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held share capital

(i) INE EMALnE  FERGER BRTRAZRA

Steppington BVI Ordinary US$10,000

RBELRE  HEk 10,000 78

Pacific Challenge Futures Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000,000

Hong Kong Limited

RTHEEMBARA A &b i 10,000,000 ¢

Grace Field Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2

HEH A R Fils il 25T

NobleNet Limited BVI Ordinary US$1

i e i e B

Get Nice Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1

S EH R il il 17T
Note 1:

The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by two directors
of the Company, carry practically no rights to dividends nor to
receive notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting
of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of GNS available for
distribution among the holders of ordinary shares and the holders
of non-voting deferred shares shall be applied first in paying to
the holders of ordinary shares the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000
per ordinary share and secondly in repaying to the holders of
non-voting deferred shares the nominal amount paid up or credited
as paid up on such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets
shall belong to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary
shares in proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up

on such ordinary shares respectively.
Note 2:

All subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-Z-NF=R=+—HIEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. TEMNBRAFRE &

Proportion of

nominal value of issued share capital Principal
held by the Company activities
FRAARAZERTRAAERIL TERH
2019 2018
“E-NF ZE— N
Indirectly ~ Directly  Indirectly
HE HE H#% fi] %
100 - 100 - Investment
holding
BEER
- 100 = 100 Inactive
LS
- 100 - 100 Property holding
B
- 100 - 100 Investment
holding
REER
- 100 - 100 Holding of yacht
A i
WaEL -

FEREN/NCINTEA G RS i ity F A1
FRE B I e R i A S o S R g R
#5035 AT ] B ROK g i B R R &
BN g ERE o A TE BRIRE > &5 4T RE 5 A it
A3 UR T B A N B JE 5 B RE AR GE A
R N2 & G A DL S AT A R A
1,000,000,000,000% JG Z 3% TH - 35 4 A 47
AN BT LR AT B R 2 SR 3K
N B A8 TET (LT 40 45 S A O A A R AT
N o T 45 G 7 5 2 A S A S A
KA N > 3653 Al 4% 4% 55 e A B S i 2
JE B BRI b SR TR 2 A 43 R e

BF5E2

I AT W6 JB 2 ) 35 A s AR A
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—HE —FE—AE —FT—LtE —FE-NF| ZB-AEFE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T 0 TH T T 50 FExT
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 3)
(Bff 1) (Pt sE2) (B 532) (Bt 5E3) (MFaE3)
RESULTS E
Revenue W 25 290,488 509,887 406,258 440,128 401,589
Profit before taxation Fi {i i 230,806 414,305 331,382 340,192 189,274
Taxation BT (38,821) (69,816) (57,322) (63,260) (56,219)
Profit for the year 7 4F Ji i 191,985 344,489 274,060 276,932 133,055
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—8H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RN ZEF-NE ZE L ZEF-N\FE | ZEBE-AEF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T SR TH T T T FET
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 3)
(Pt 5EL) (Bt 5E2) (FftsE2) (Bt 5£3) (M$aE3)
ASSETS AND EERERE
LIABILITIES
Total assets HEE 3,677,001 5,148,670 4,371,119 4,909,349 5,407,971
Total liabilities e s (2,463,980) (3,626,373) (749,692) (910,131) (1,442,040)
Total equity HOHE 4 1,213,021 1,522,297 3,621,427 3,999,218 3,965,931
Notes: it -

(1) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been
extracted from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position as set out in the Company’s Global Offering
prospectus dated 24 March 2016.

(2) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group have been
extracted from the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position as set out in the Company’s annual report.

(3) The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 have been extracted from the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position which are
set out on pages 93, 94 and 95 respectively.
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(1) AEEZEHLEEMEBIIREE AN
AHWAE F—ANFE=H +WNUHZE2H
WEPRERENZ A ED L 2w
W g 3f K57 A BB IR -

Q) AEMZEGREERARTIFEAARR
AR T 2 AR R A R L A A T Ui 4 R
Bk & BB IR VLK -

3) AHEHEE _FT—IFM _F—/NF=H
= HIREEZ AR EE RAET
Al Bk H A AE R ER93 ~ 941095 B T #k 2 45
& 18 28 M A 4 T k28 R R A A B AR
%@ o
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